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÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ âŘǌƩǏǣ 
 
Year Ended 31 August 2020  
 
The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors ʩ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ŊŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉ ŰƩǏ 
the period from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The company was incorporated on 11 March 2011 and commenced 
operations on April 1 st 2011.  ÷ŸŘ ĬƞƞǫĬƓ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ǗŘǏȂŘǗ ǣŸŘ ǌǫǏǌƩǗŘǗ ƩŰ ŉƩǣŸ Ĭ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ ǏŘǌƩǏǣʆ Ĭƞő Ĭ őŽǏŘŊǣƩǏǗʩ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ǫƞőŘǏ 
company law. 
 
Structure, Governance and Management  
 
Constitution:  
 
÷ŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ŽǗ Ĭ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉ ƓŽƜŽǣŘő ŉȉ űǫĬǏĬƞǣŘŘ Ĭƞő Ĭƞ ŘȈŘƜǌǣ ŊŸĬǏŽǣȉʋ ÷ŸŘ =ŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ =ƩƜǌĬƞȉʩǗ ¯ŘƜƩǏĬƞőǫƜ Ĭƞő 
Articles of Association are the primary governing doc uments of the Academy Trust. The trust operates an academy for pupils aged 
11 to 18 serving a catchment area in East Devon. 
 
÷ŸŘ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ¥ŽƜŽǣŘő ĬǏŘ ĬƓǗƩ ǣŸŘ őŽǏŘŊǣƩǏǗ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ŊŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉ ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ǌǫǏǌƩǗŘǗ ƩŰ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉ law. 
TŸŘ ŊŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉ ŽǗ ƐƞƩȃƞ ĬǗ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ ¼ǣǣŘǏȉ êǣ ¯ĬǏȉʋ 
 
Details of the Trustees who have served throughout the year are shown in the Reference and Administrative details on page 1.  
 
¯ŘƜŉŘǏǗʩ ¥ŽĬŉŽƓŽǣȉʅ 
 
There are five members of the Charitable Trust:   S. Fallows, S. Ellison, J Fearn-Smith, L Kennaway and E. Charles. Each member of 
the Charitable Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the event of it being wound up while  they 
are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the 
debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member. 
 
÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ qƞőŘƜƞŽǣŽŘǗʅ 
 
÷ŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ŸĬǗ ƩǌǣŘő ŽƞǣƩ ǣŸŘ DŘǌĬǏǣƜŘƞǣ ŰƩǏ LőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞʩǗ ǏŽǗƐ ǌǏƩǣection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance 
where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from claims arising from neglig ent 
acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify 
the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.  
 
Principal Activities:  
 
The principal activity of the Academy is specifically restricted to the following:  to advance for the public benefit education in the 
United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying  on, 
managing and developing a school offering a broad and balanced curriculum. 
 
Methods of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees:  
 
The number of Trustees shall be not less than three and shall not be more than twenty one.  
 
÷ŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ Board of Trustees comprises the Headteacher, up to seven Parent Trustees, up to two Teacher Trustees, one 
support staff Trustee and up to seven Trustees appointed by the members and three co -opted Trustees who are appointed by the 
Trustee Board (excluding any Trustees who were themselves co-opted). The Trustees may also appoint Associate Members 
operating within the remit or such and without voting rights at the Board of Trustees.  
 
Parent Trustees are elected by the parents of current students of the Academy Trust and Staff Trustees (teaching and support)  
are elected by the staff currently em ployed at the Academy Trust.  
 
With regard to the appointment of other Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills mix of the Trustees in order to 
ensure that the Board of Trustees has the necessary skills and expertise to contribute fully to  ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ őŘȂŘƓƩǌƜŘƞǣʋ 
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All Trustees are appointed to serve for a period of four years with the exception of associate Trustees who are appointed on an 
annual basis and have no voting rights and the Headteacher who is able to serve for the duration of  their appointment as 
Headteacher. The Chair and Vice Chair of Trustees are elected annually. 
 
Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees:  
 
All new Trustees participate in a voluntary induction programme with training offere d from a local provider but the induction 
provided will depend upon their existing experience and skillsets. A tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupil s will 
always be offered. All Trustees are issued with a copy of the DfE Governors Handbo ok giving a wide range of information and 
guidance relating to the governance of an academy. A programme of Trustee training is provided according to need and specific 
roles.  A skills audit is carried out bi-annually and training accessed according to needs indicated. The Board of Trustees holds 
training events when required based on key issues for Trustee and school development. 
 
Organisational  Structure:  
 
The Board of Trustees normally meets four times a year. The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of the 
Academy and agrees membership of Committees and Statutory and other Panels. It receives reports from its Committees and 
monitors their activities through the minutes of the meetings. It also establishes the Terms of Reference and P rocedures for its 
Committees. The Board of Trustees may also, from time to time, establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limi ted 
timescale. 
 
The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Trustees: to determine any proposals for the  alteration, closure or change of 
category of the Academy; to amend the constitution of the Board of Trustees; to appoint or remove the Chair and/or Vice Chair; to 
appoint the Secretary to the Trustees; to suspend Trustees; to delegate specific responsibil ities to any Trustee, Committee, the 
Headteacher or other holder of an executive office, and to determine and review annually the terms of reference, constitution  and 
membership of all Committees; to publish an annual report and accounts; to make arrangements for staff dismissal appeals; to set 
up panels for the selection of the Headteacher; to approve the annual School Development Plan; to approve the school budget and 
to monitor the annual Register of Interests.  
 
For the period 1 September 2019 until 31 August 2020 there have been four Trustee sub -committees as follows:  
 

Committee Responsibilities 

Resources Meets five times a year dealing with all matters relating to finance, sites and buildings.  

Audit  Meets three times a year dealing with the internal scrutiny and audit requirements of 
the trust.  

Curriculum & Quality Meets five times a year dealing with all matters relating to the quality of teaching and 
learning including the curriculum and general staffing issues.  

Pay & Performance 
Committee 

Meets once a year dealing with the specific issues relating to performance related pay 
ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ǗǣĬŰŰ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ lŘĬőǣŘĬŊŸŘǏʩǗ âŘƜǫƞŘǏĬǣŽƩƞʋ  

 
The SLT manages the Academy at an executive operational level, implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees and 
reporting back to them. Some spending control is devolved to Budget Holders, who are authorised in line with the Scheme of 
Delegation contained with the Finance Policy. The Headteacher is responsible for the appointment of staff. The Headteacher is  the 
Accounting Officer as required by the Funding Agreement with the Department for Education. The responsibilities of the 
Accounting Officer are defined in the Governance Statement on page 17. An appointed external firm who reports to the Audit 
Committee supported the internal scrutiny during the period.  
 
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel:  
 
The Headteacher must demonstrate sustained high quality of performance, with particular regard to leadership, management and 
student prog ress at the school and will be subject to a review of performance against their performance objectives before any pay 
increase will be awarded. The clarification of the application of the criteria (STPCD 2019: 6.1: 11.6.2 guidance) for Leaders hip 
Group progression will be taken fully into account. No pay progression for this post is automatic. Any progression is reviewed and 
agreed by trustees taking into account performance in role and national benchmarks including STPCD.  
 
The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) must demonstrate sustained high quality of performance in respect of school leadership and 
management and pupil progress and will be subject to a review of performance against their performance objectives before any 
performance points will be awarded. The clarification of the application of the criteria (STPCD 2019: 13.1.1: 13.2.5 guidance) for 
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Leadership Group progression will be taken fully into account. Annual pay progression within the pay range for these posts is  not 
automatic. Any progression will nor mally be by one point, but the Board of Trustees may consider movement by two points in 
exceptional circumstances. The national leadership scales as agreed by all unions in 2019 based on STPCD recommendations 
apply. 
 
Trade Union Facility Time  
 
Under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, the Trustees acknowledge 
the requirement to include information contained in Schedule 2 of the Regulations. This is detailed below:  
 

Relevant Union Officials  

Number of employees who were relevant union 
officials during the relevant period  Full-time equivalent employee number 

3 1.51 

 
Percentage of time spent on facility time  

Percentage of time Number of Employees 

0% 0 

1% - 50% 2 

51% - 99% 0 

100%  1 

 
Percentage of  Pay Bill spent on facility time  

Total cost of facility time  £27,414  

Total pay bill £3,863,166  

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time  0.71% 

 
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 

percentage of total paid facility time hours  100% 

 
 
 
Risk Management:  
 
The Trustees are responsible for the management of risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed, and have undertaken a review 
of risks associated with its activities.  
 
The key controls used by the Academy Trust include:  
 
Á Formal agendas for Trusteesʩ ƜŘŘǣŽƞű  
Á Detailed terms of reference for all committees  
Á A clear School Development Plan identifying key strategic planning objectives and the resources required to achieve them  
Á Comprehensive budget planning, monitoring and review  
Á Clear financial delegation levels  
Á Clear health and safety policy with a regular action log  
Á Formal written policies reviewed on a regular basis  
Á Clear safeguarding and vetting procedures as required by law to protect children and young people  
Á Rigorous review of educational achievement and attainment to ensure continuing high standards  
Á Comprehensive planning and review of admissions processes  
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The Board of Trustees has reviewed the major risks, focusing on operational, financial, governance, compliance and reputational 
risk, and has taken steps to mitigate likely risks and to ensure regular monitoring of the primary areas of potential risk. A ll of these 
are documented in an academy risk register which is updated and reviewed biennially . 
 
The Board of Trustees is satisfied therefore that the major risks identified have been adequately mitigated where necessary. It is 
recognised, however, that systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that major risks have been adequately 
managed.  
 
Connected Organisations , including Related Party Relationships:  

÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ ŽǗ ŊƩƜƜŽǣǣŘő ǣƩ ȃƩǏƐŽƞű ȃŽǣŸ ƩǣŸŘǏ ƩǏűĬƞŽǗĬǣŽƩƞǗ ȃŸŽŊŸ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŘ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ ŽƜǌǏƩȂŘƜŘƞǣ Žƞ ǌǏƩȂŽǗŽƩƞ ŰƩǏ ǗǣǫőŘnts 
and to ensure that their achievement and wellbeing is maximised.    

The school is part of a successful and vibrant learning community which includes the 5 partner primary schools.   We work in 
partnership to provide effective transition arrangements and best value, involving procurement and services. We have long hel d 
relationships with other organisations such as Exeter University in order to provide a high quality training programme for ITE 
students.   The school works with three Teaching School alliances, the Jurassic Coast Teaching School Alliance, West Country 
Teaching School Alliance and Dartmoor Teaching School Alliance accessing training and training teachers through the School 
Direct programme. There are three middle leaders appointed as Senior Leaders in Education who work on school to school support. 
The school was a specialist Sports College.  ÷ŸŘ ŘǣŸƩǗ ǏŘƜĬŽƞǗ Ĭǣ ǣŸŘ ŸŘĬǏǣ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ őǏŽȂŘ ǣƩ ǌǏƩȂŽőŘ ǏŽŊŸ Ĭƞő ƜŘƜƩǏĬŉƓŘ 
learning experiences which have led to high quality learning and personal development.   The impact legacy of the sports specialism 
is clearly visible through partnership working. The school hosts the East Devon School Games Organiser who works with 57 
primary schools, one special school and 10 secondary schools supporting their engagement in the School Games programme. 

÷ŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ĬǗǌŽǏĬǣŽƩƞ ŽǗ ǣƩ provide a personalised curriculum suited to meet the needs of students within the resources 
available. ÷ŸŽǗ ŽǗ ȂŘǏȉ ƜǫŊŸ ǗǫǌǌƩǏǣŘő ŉȉ ǣŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ŊĬǏŘŘǏǗ Ĭƞő ȃƩǏƐ ǏŘƓĬǣŘő ƓŘĬǏƞŽƞű ǌǏƩȂŽǗŽƩƞ Žƞ ǌĬǏǣƞŘǏǗŸŽǌ ȃŽǣŸ ƓƩŊĬƓ ŉǫǗŽƞŘǗǗ 
partners, some of whom are business mentors to some of our most vulnerable young people.  We have a close relationship with 
the Careers SW personal advisor whose services we purchase to provide impartial Careers Education Information Advice and 
Guidance to students.  The school activeƓȉ ǌĬǏǣŽŊŽǌĬǣŘǗ Žƞ ǣŸŘ LĬǗǣ DŘȂƩƞ âŘŽƞǣŘűǏĬǣŽƩƞ ßĬƞŘƓ ǗǫǌǌƩǏǣŽƞű ǣŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ŘǣŸƩǗ ƩŰ 
ʨĬŊŸŽŘȂŘƜŘƞǣ ŰƩǏ ĬƓƓʩʋ ÷ŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓ ŊƩƞǣŽƞǫŘǗ ǣƩ ȃƩǏƐ ŊƓƩǗŘƓȉ ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ ¥!ʆ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŘǗ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ lŘĬőǣŘĬŊŸŘǏʩ !ǗǗƩŊŽĬǣŽƩƞǗ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ 
Headteacher sits as a member of the Independent Panel for Exclusions.  

The school has developed an increasing network of partnerships with other providers such as a SENCo group and is a member of 
the South West Academies Group ʛ academies from across the South West who work collaboratively on schoo l improvement.  

As well as a strong local network of connected organisations the schools has active links with national and international par tners 
including schools in India and Melanesia. Students have taken part, in the past in foreign language visits to  France and we hosted 
students from Spain for several weeks last year.   

÷ŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ĬǗǗƩŊŽĬǣŽƩƞ ȃŽǣŸ ĬƓƓ ƩŰ ǣŸŘǗŘ ƞŘǣȃƩǏƐǗ ŽǗ ǣƩ ŰǫǏǣŸŘǏ ǌǏƩƜƩǣŘ ǣŸŘ ƩǌǌƩǏǣǫƞŽǣŽŘǗ Ĭƞő ĬŊŸŽŘȂŘƜŘƞǣǗ ƩŰ ƩǫǏ 
students and to enable our staff to share good practice and so raise the standard of teaching and learning. 
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Objectives and Activities  
 
Public Benefit:  
  
÷ŸŘ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ŸĬȂŘ űŽȂŘƞ ŊƩƞǗŽőŘǏĬǣŽƩƞ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ =ŸĬǏŽǣȉ =ƩƜƜŽǗǗŽƩƞʩǗ űŘƞŘǏĬƓ űǫŽőĬƞŊŘ Ʃƞ ǌǫŉƓŽŊ ŉŘƞŘŰŽǣ Ĭƞő Žƞ ǌĬǏǣŽŊǫƓĬǏ ǣƩ ŽǣǗ 
supplementary public benefit gui dance on advancing education.  The Academy Trust provides education to children and young 
people that is: 
  
Á balanced and broad  
Á promotes the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of students at the school and of society  
Á prepares students at the school for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life  
Á promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and understanding of specific areas of study, skills and  

expertise.  
 
The Academy Trust is an 11-18 comprehensive school serving Ottery St Mary and surrounding villages. It works closely with its 
five main partner primary schools and draws mainly from these schools to fill its Planned Admission Number (PAN) of 180 from 
years 7-11. It has a fully mixed ability and gender intake and as it is over-subscribed, it employs Devon Local Authority to manage 
admissions and all appeals for places. It is subject to the current statutory arrangements as laid down in the School Admissi ons 
Code. Current arrangements for entry to the school are available in the section of the school website dealing with admissions 
arrangements. 
 
Objectives:  
 
÷ŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ƩŉƍŘŊǣŽȂŘ ŽǗ ǗǌŘŊŽŰŽŊĬƓƓȉ ǏŘǗǣǏŽŊǣŘő ǣƩ ǣŸŘ ŰƩƓƓƩȃŽƞűʅ ǣƩ ĬőȂĬƞŊŘ ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ǌǫŉƓŽŊ ŉŘƞŘŰŽǣ ŘőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞ Žƞ ǣŸŘ United 
Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, ma naging 
and developing a school offering a broad and balanced curriculum. 
 
÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ ĬƜŉŽǣŽƩƞ ŽǗ ǣƩ ŉŘ ƩƞŘ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ŉŘǗǣ Ŋomprehensive schools in the country. Our ambition is to develop all students 
academically, socially and emotionally in a happy, organised and disciplined environment so that they can make full use of their 
opportunities in life.  
 
To be achieved by creating a place: 
Á Where all students have the highest aspirations for themselves and each other  
Á Where all staff have the highest aspirations for their students and themselves  
Á With staff who are confident in seeking out opportunities to develop their own practic e and are happy to share their ideas and 

expertise with colleagues  
Á With a curriculum that is best suited to the current and future needs of the individual student in the best learning environm ent 

possible  
Á Where there is universal high quality teaching an d learning so that students have true equality of opportunity  
Á Where there is a consistent message to students in terms of our expectations about behaviour, uniform, how we work together 

and how we treat each other  
Á Which empowers and involves its parents in helping and supporting their child to achieve  
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Strategic Report  
 
A new set of Strategic Objectives were set for the period 2019 -22 which reflected the educational climate, and the needs of the 
school, at the time.  The objectives were influenced significantly by a renewed focus on the curriculum, school performance 
measures, changes to assessment at all key stages, the impact of funding in education, the recruitment and retention of teach ers 
nationally and locally, and the emotional health and wellbein g of students and staff.  
 

 Strategic Objectives (2019 -22) 

An outstanding 
curriculum 

To ensure that all curriculum experiences are well considered, intentional, and implemented 
effectively leading to consistently high achievement for all.  

Understanding t he 
needs of every 

student  

To further develop the knowledge, skills and capacity of staff to ensure those students who may 
be disadvantaged, have additional needs or barriers to learning or need a deeper learning 
experience have a positive educational experience and achieve strong outcomes based on their 
starting points.  

The wellbeing of the 
whole school 
community  

To further develop a culture in the school where wellbeing (creating the conditions for us all to 
thrive) is central to all decision making for everyone in the school community including students 
and staff. 

6th Form To ensure sustainable and high quality 16-19 provision for all students  

School Resources To provide the school community with the best possible learning environment and resources, 
leading to raised aspirations for all.  

 
 
In order to deliver against the strategic objectives, the trust established a set of Operational Priorities for 2019 -22.  
 
However, the impact of COVID -19 (Coronavirus) on the education sector in the second half of t he year was significant.  The country 
saw the shutdown of schools on 20 March 2020, with provision only in place for children of key workers and those with Educati on, 
Health and Care Plans (EHCPs).  The school then re-opened for up to 25% of years 10 and 1 2 students on a daily basis from 15 
June onwards.  This significant disruption to the education of students, and the requirement for many staff to work from home , has 
meant that the operational priorities for 2019 -20 changed quite significantly during the academic year.  The focus quickly shifted 
to ensuing that students were well supported in their emotional health and wellbeing, as well as academic studies.  Great eff orts 
were made to ensure that there was regular contact with students and families by tho se in pastoral roles in the school e.g. Key 
Workers, Form Tutors, Learning Coaches, Pastoral Support Workers, Heads of House.  There was also an emphasis placed on the 
effective delivery of remote education for those that were unable to attend school in pe rson. 
 
A significant amount of time was also invested in providing examination boards with Centre Assessment Grades.  These were the  
grades that student were most likely to have achieved if they had sat the examinations and took into account a range of evi dence 
including classwork, homework, mock exam results etc.  The school followed the Ofqual published guidance on this process in 
order to ensure that the process was applied fairly, and without bias or discrimination, for students at this school.  
 
Despite the challenges of a pandemic, we have continued to develop the school site and were delighted with the refurbishment of 
areas of the school such as the Design and Technology block and student toilet facilities.  These changes will make a significant 
diffe rence to the experience of the students on a day to day basis and will enhance their education.  
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Curriculum  
 
!ǣ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ ȃŘ ŘƞőŘĬȂƩǫǏ ǣƩ ǗŘǏȂŘ ǣŸŘ ƓƩŊĬƓ ŊƩƜƜǫƞŽǣȉ ŉȉ őŘȂŘƓƩǌŽƞű Ĭ ƓŘĬǏƞŽƞű ŘƞȂŽǏƩƞƜŘƞǣ ŉĬǗŘő Ʃƞ ŸŽűŸ 
expectations, shared goals and strong partnerships. We encourage all members to develop their full potential in a caring 
environment where opinions are valued and achievement is celebrated. 
!ǣ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ ȃŘ ǗŘŘƐ ǣƩ ƩŰŰŘǏ Ĭ ŊǫǏǏŽŊǫƓǫƜ ǣŸĬǣ ŽǗ ŉǏƩĬő Ĭƞő ŉĬƓĬƞŊŘő Ĭƞő ĬǌǌǏƩǌǏŽĬǣŘ ǣƩ all students irrespective of 
gender, ethnicity, belief, levels of ability or disability and social, cultural or economic background. 
 
Our curriculum includes all the timetabled lessons together with various extra -curricular activities that are organised t o enrich 
ŘĬŊŸ ǗǣǫőŘƞǣʩǗ ŘȈǌŘǏŽŘƞŊŘ Ĭƞő ǌǏƩȂŽőŘ ƩǌǌƩǏǣǫƞŽǣŽŘǗ ǣƩ ŉǫŽƓő ŊǫƓǣǫǏĬƓ ŊĬǌŽǣĬƓʋ qǣ ĬƓǗƩ ŽƞŊƓǫőŘǗ ǣŸŘ ŸŽőőŘƞ ŊǫǏǏŽŊǫƓǫƜʅ ȃŸĬǣ ǣhe 
students learn from the way that they are treated and expected to behave.  
 

The curriculum intent  
 

¶ to provide opportuni ties for all students to learn and achieve 
¶ to provide students with the opportunities to become successful learners, who enjoy learning, make progress 

and achieve 
¶ ǣƩ ǌǏƩƜƩǣŘ ǗǣǫőŘƞǣǗʩ ǗǌŽǏŽǣǫĬƓʆ ƜƩǏĬƓʆ ǗƩŊŽĬƓ Ĭƞő ŊǫƓǣǫǏĬƓ őŘȂŘƓƩǌƜŘƞǣ 
¶ to prepare all students for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of life  
¶ to be differentiated and personalised to the needs of individual students  
¶ to provide students with genuinely memorable lifelong experiences  
¶ to provide students with as broad and balanced an  educational experience as possible for as long as possible 
¶ to reflect the overarching aim of inclusion  
¶ to provide all students with the opportunity to master the key skills and content relevant to their key stage    
¶ to promote British values of democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and tolerance of 

those with different faiths and beliefs.  
 
Pupil Premium (PP)  
 
The school receives a sum of money based on Free School Meals (FSM) + 6 (anyone taking or having taken FSM in the last 6 
yŘĬǏǗʙʆ ǗǣǫőŘƞǣǗ ȃŸƩǗŘ ǌĬǏŘƞǣǗ ĬǏŘ Žƞ ǣŸŘ ǗŘǏȂŽŊŘǗ ʆ ǣŸƩǗŘ ȃŸƩ ĬǏŘ ʨ¥ƩƩƐŘő !ŰǣŘǏʩ ƩǏ ȃŸƩ ŸĬȂŘ ŉŘŘƞ ĬőƩǌǣŘő ŰǏƩƜ ŊĬǏŘ ʘǌƩǗǣ 
LAC). This is a proxy measure designed to support the performance of students who are deemed to be suffering from, or at risk  
of, deprivation. The school must use the lump sum of money to address progress of any students who we deem to be at risk of 
deprivation inhibiting their learning and progress. The money is spent on:  
 

¶ Reducing class sizes in maths and English through years 7-11 ʛ with some further decrease in year 7 for a targeted 
literacy lesson each week.  

¶ Buying in additional teachers to release key maths and English staff to provide small group targeted intervention for 
disadvantaged students.  

¶ Employing two Learning Coaches wh o mentor students, track progress and ensure that provision is targeted.  
¶ Employing two Thrive practitioners to support the emotional needs of our disadvantaged students  
¶ Providing financial support to families to pay for subject specific materials or trip s/visits to enable students to access the 

full curriculum.   
¶ Providing one-to-one tuition for year 11 students in maths and English.  
¶ Supporting families financially to enable their children to access the full range of extra -curricular activities which hav e 

included drama tuition and music lessons. 
¶ Running a daily homework club specifically for disadvantaged students.  
¶ Providing a daily breakfast club. 
¶ The school employs a designated teacher who attends Personal Education Plan meetings and any other meeting (and 

maintain the necessary paperwork) relating to the student in care.  
¶ Providing students in receipt of free school meals with ICT equipment.   
¶ Running an ASPIRE programme to provide a range of opportunities to inspire and raise the aspirations of 

disadvantaged students.  
¶ Working with other agencies such as the Donkey Sanctuary to provide mental health support to vulnerable students.  
¶ The purchase of additional Education Welfare Officer (EWO) hours to support improved attendance for our 

disadvantaged stud ents.  
¶ Providing counselling specifically for disadvantaged students.  
¶ ßǏƩȂŽőŽƞű ĬƓǣŘǏƞĬǣŽȂŘ ƓŘĬǏƞŽƞű ŘƞȂŽǏƩƞƜŘƞǣǗ ǗǫŊŸ ĬǗ ǣŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ űĬǏőŘƞʋ 
¶ Supporting girls from disadvantaged families with sanitary products.   



The King’s School Academy Trust 

9 

¶ Providing all year 7 students in receipt of free school meals with a school starter kit, including stationery and calculator.  

 
Achievements and Performance  
 
Due to the national lockdown, the government announced that students would not sit national examinations during the summer 
of 2020. To replace ǣŸŽǗʆ ǗŊŸƩƩƓǗ Ĭƞő ŊƩƓƓŘűŘǗ ȃŘǏŘ ĬǗƐŘő ŉȉ ǣŸŘ ŘȈĬƜ ǏŘűǫƓĬǣƩǏ ¼ŰǎǫĬƓ ǣƩ ʨǫǗŘ ǣŸŘŽǏ ǌǏƩŰŘǗǗŽƩƞĬƓ ŘȈǌŘǏŽŘƞŊŘ ǣƩ 
make a fair and objective judgement of the grade they believed a student would have achieved had they sat their exams this 
ȉŘĬǏʋʩ qƞ ĬőőŽǣŽƩƞʆ ¼ŰǎǫĬƓ ĬƞƞƩǫƞŊŘő ǣŸĬǣ ǣŸŘȉ ȃƩǫƓő ŉŘƞŊŸƜĬǏƐ ŘĬŊŸ ŊŘƞǣǏŘʩǗ ǏŘǗǫƓǣǗ ĬűĬŽƞǗǣ ǣŸŘŽǏ ǣȃƩ ȉŘĬǏ ǌŘǏŰƩǏƜĬƞŊŘ ʘɂ ȉŘĬǏ 
for A Level) and their own algorithm in order to ensure that there would be no grade inflation. The school undertook a rigoro us 
moderation of the teacher  assessed grades to ensure the robustness and validity of the grades that we finally submitted to exam 
boards in line with the key principles of the Ofqual guidance.  
  
In August 2020, the government abandoned this algorithm following criticism of the numb er of grades that had been changed 
for A Level students. Subsequently, students received their CAG or standardised grade, whichever was the higher.  
 
The DfE have also stated that the results for this year would not be published in league tables and that c entres would not be 
accountable for these results. Previous whole school performance measures such as P8 (Progress 8) are therefore irrelevant for 
this cohort.  
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Key Performance Indicators  
 
Although the key measures of success for the Academy Trust are reflected in the earlier achievements section of this report, the 
Trustees ŸĬȂŘ ĬűǏŘŘő Ĭ ƞǫƜŉŘǏ ƩŰ ƐŘȉ ǌŘǏŰƩǏƜĬƞŊŘ ŽƞőŽŊĬǣƩǏǗ ȃŸŽŊŸ ǗǫǌǌƩǏǣ ǣŸŘ ĬǗǗŘǗǗƜŘƞǣ Ĭƞő ƜƩƞŽǣƩǏŽƞű ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ 
performance. These are as follows: 
 

KPI Aug 
2020  

Aug 
2019  

Aug 
2018  

Aug  
2017  

Aug 
2016  

Aug 
2015  

Aug 
2014  Comment 

Total Staffing costs 
as a percentage of 

GAG* income 
88.98  88.1% 84.9% 88.0% 87.3% 88.4% 87.6% Staffing costs including non -teaching 

(excluding catering and cleaning staff)  

Income per pupil £5,432  £5,096 £5,217  £4,963  £4,987  £4,840  £4,937  

Income on an annualised basis (excluding 
catering, Restricted General other Funds, 
Income from Conversion and Capital) -  
Pupils on roll at Jan census 

Pupil to Teacher 
(FTE) ratio 19.21  19.07  18.33  17.94  18.29  17.78  17.34 Includes Unqualified Teachers 

Current Ratio 2.58 3.29 2.23 4.20 7.10 3.47 3.32 The ability of the school to meet its short 
term financial obligations  

Admissions Ratio 1.77 1.98 1.91 1.80 2.06 2.14 1.93 No of applications (1 st, 2nd & 3rd Preference) 
to the number accepted on roll 

*GAG ʛ General Annual Grant provided by the DfE ʛ qƞŊƓǫőŘǗ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏʩǗ ßĬȉ eǏĬƞǣ ŰƩǏ !ǫű ɀɈ 
 

Other Achievements  
 
Students  
 
The Academy Trust provides a comprehensive extra-curricular programme which, despite being compromised by  partial school 
closure and COVID-19 restrictions, over the period has included: 
 

Á Training students for Ten Tors 2020 ʛ students were not able to complete the event due to the pandemic.  
Á ¯ĬŽƞǣĬŽƞŘő ǣŸŘ ƓŽƞƐ ȃŽǣŸ Ĭ =ŸŽƓőǏŘƞʩǗ ŸƩƜŘ Ĭƞő ǗŊŸƩƩƓ Žƞ ÷ĬƜŽƓ ±Ĭőǫʆ qndia through a UK based charity. 
Á Sending 88 Christmas boxes to our link charity in Moldova.  
Á Raising over £10,000 for charity.  
Á Sending students to Normandy and India as curriculum enhancement. 
Á Continuing to develop our leadership programme with advanced lea dership schemes sitting alongside the prefect 

system, JSLA, CSLA, Literacy Leaders, Maths Leaders, Language Leaders, House Leaders and more. 
Á Representatives of the Teen Health Group spoke at a Devon RSE Conferences during the academic year. 
Á Encouraging volunteering amongst the student body to achieve both internal and external accreditation.  
Á Developing Mindfulness Leaders to work alongside our Teen Health Group, our 6 th Form Teen Health Group, Anti 

Bullying Ambassadors and Mental Health volunteers.  
Á Ensuring that the House Councils feed into the School Parliament so that it is more accountable to the student body.  
Á Further enhanced a Spanish Exchange Programme with a school in Madrid and a French exchange with a school in 

Strasbourg. 
Á Extending links with Highe Ǐ LőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞ ǌǏƩȂŽőŘǏǗ őŘȂŘƓƩǌŽƞű ǣŸŘ ʦêǣŘǌ-þǌ êŊŸŘƜŘʧ ȃŽǣŸ ±Řȃ =ƩƓƓŘűŘʆ ¼ȈŰƩǏőʋ 
Á Achieved the School Games GOLD Mark Award 
Á Entered students in a range of external competitions and events including the Spirited Arts competition and the Anne 

Frank Writing Com petition.  
Á Held a number of internal house events in sports and the arts.  

  



The King’s School Academy Trust 

11 

General 
 
Á Held a Sports Presentation Evening for students and parents.  
Á Held a Carol Concert 
Á êǣĬűŘő Ĭ ßǏƩőǫŊǣŽƩƞ ƩŰ ʦ<ĬŊƐ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ ɇȿʩǗʧ 
Á Held a virtual art exhibition.  
Á Held a lunch for old people in the local area. 
Á Held workshops and talks from a range of visiting guests including the Camborne School of Mines, the University of 

Southampton and Exmoor National Park. 
Á Ran a Mini Enterprise competition which raised £2179.03 for charity.  
Á Organised trips to various external events and competitions including theatre trips, poetry competitions, fieldwork etc.  
Á Hosted visits from Town and County councillors.  
Á Trained new teachers to the profession. 
Á Maintained and developed our Business Forum to ensure that students get regular contact with local Business Partners and 

the world beyond school.  
Á Conducted Mock Interviews with local business partners for all Year 11 students.  

 
 
External Achievements  
 
Junior Boys East Devon Cross Country Runners Up  Inter Boys East Devon Cross Country Runners Up 
Senior Boys East Devon Cross Country Champions  U13 Boys Badminton East Devon Runners Up 
U15 Girls Badminton East Devon Runners Up  U14 Girls East Devon Badminton Runners Up 
U13 Boys East Devon Indoor Cricket Champions  U15 Boys East Devon Indoor Cricket Runners Up 
U15 Boys Devon Indoor Cricket Runners Up   U14 Girls Hockey East Devon Runners Up   
U16 Girls Hockey East Devon Champions   U15 Girls Hockey East Devon Runners Up 
Boccia East Devon Ability Counts Champions   Seated Volleyball East Devon Ability Counts Champions  
New Age Kurling East Devon Ability Counts Champions  Seated Volleyball Devon Ability Counts Champions  
Boccia South West Ability Counts Champions   U13 East Devon Indoor Athletics Champions 
U13 Boys Hockey East Devon Champions   U13 Girls Netball East Devon League Champions 
þɀɂ <ƩȉʩǗ dǫǣǗĬƓ LĬǗǣ DŘȂƩƞ =ŸĬƜǌŽƩƞǗ  
U14 Sports Hall Athletics Pentathlon Devon Virtual Games Champions  
Over 50 students (the highest in Devon) took part in the Devon Virtual Schoo l Games during Lockdown  
Winner of the Exeter Schools Cook off at the Exeter Food Festival and the Rotary Future Chef South West Champion.  
The school was awarded the National Schools Games Mark Gold Award for the fifth year running  
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Going Concern 
 
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  For this reason it continues to adopt the going c oncern 
basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found i n the 
Statement of Accounting Policies.  
 
Financial review  
 
Despite continued financial uncertainty and turbulence in governmen t funding, years of real terms cuts to school funding and a 
ŰǫƞőŽƞű ŰƩǏƜǫƓĬ ǣŸĬǣ őŽǗĬőȂĬƞǣĬűŘǗ ǗŊŸƩƩƓǗ ȃŽǣŸ Ĭ ǗŽƜŽƓĬǏ ǌǏƩŰŽƓŘ ǣƩ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗʆ  ǣŸŘ Trustees are content that the Academy Trust 
is in a strong financial position due to a culture and history of prudent financial management and governance. The Trustees remain 
committed to ensuring that any funds expended, will impact positively on the teaching and learning of our students.  
 
Restricted funds: 
Over this reporting period, the Academy Trust received a  eŘƞŘǏĬƓ !ƞƞǫĬƓ eǏĬƞǣ ƩŰ ˄ɄʆɃɃȿƐ ʘŽƞŊƓǫőŽƞű ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßĬȉ Ĭƞő 
Pension Grants) which is the primary mechanism for funding the schools objectives. We have spent £5,178k on the academies 
primary educational operational expenditure together with a transfer  of £17.1k from GAG to support our role in school sports and 
£260k to support capital investments. This means we are carrying a GAG balance of nil through to the next period.  
 
The income relating to pupil premium remained at the same rate as the prior rep orting period at £935 per eligible pupil. The specific 
interventions relating to Pupil Premium are highlighted earlier in this report. The expenditure is supplemented by GAG as som e 
interventions support a wider student population than just those who are i dentified as warranting pupil premium intervention.  
 
The fund to support developing schools across the Jurassic Coast Teaching Schools Alliance (JCTSA), remains in place this year as 
the project continues.  Similarly our role as a School Games Organiser continues therefore the Sports Partnership and Games fund 
remains.  
 
Restricted Fixed Asset Funds: 
During the period, the school has seen significant investment in Capital projects both through investment directly from the s chool 
and devolved capital funds w ith additions of £692k.  
 
Unrestricted:   
The Academy trust brought forward an Unrestricted Fund balance of £773k. During the reporting period incoming resources 
associated with Canteen Income, Traded activities and donations amounted to £347k and the cost  of generating such income 
was £304k. This together with a transfer of £409k to support capital investments, the unrestricted funds at the end of the pe riod 
are £407k.  
 

Reserves Policy: 
 
The Trustees recognise the need to maintain a reserve to support: 
 

¶ The need for working capital.  
¶ Unexpected expenditure due to risks materialising.  
¶ Short-term shortfalls in income if payments from income sources were delayed or incorrect.  
¶ The three year projected costs of the Academy Trust in an environment where governmen t income falls below the 

inflationary costs of the academy.  
 
The main reason for maintaining reserves is to support significant unforeseen risks that materialise despite mitigations that  have 
been put in place. A level of resources from the Unrestricted Fund will be carried forward as a risk budget but to also support 
capital investment (at the end of this period £407K).  
 
The amount to be carried forward from the General Annual Grant is no longer subject to restrictions stipulated by the DfE as a 
deed of variation was agreed between the Trust and the DfE on the 11 th April 2013 but at the end of this period was £nil.   
 
Balancing the risks associated with a site and facilities that require investment to maintain effectively, the total reserves  across the 
three funds will be in the long term maintained between two thresholds:  
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 Reserve Min: £200,000 
Reserve Max: £450,000 (approximately 1 month operational costs)  

 
If the level of reserves exceeds the maximum stated, the Trustees would seek to invest the funds in capital improvements for the 
benefit of the school. However, at the current time the trust are very conscious that the 3 year forecast for the academy, pr ojects 
a cumulative deficit due to restrained government income, continued uncertainty regarding th e implementation of a National 
dǫƞőŽƞű dƩǏƜǫƓĬ ŊƩǫǌƓŘő ȃŽǣŸ ǏŽǗŽƞű ŊƩǗǣǗ ǗǫŊŸ ĬǗ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞǗ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ ǗǣĬǣŘő űƩȂŘǏƞƜŘƞǣ ĬǗǌŽǏĬǣŽƩƞǗ ƩŰ ŽƞŊǏŘĬǗŘő 
ǣŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ǗĬƓĬǏŽŘǗʋ ĖŸŽƓǗǣ ǗƩƜŘ ǏŘ-structuring of the curriculum has taken place to ensure the school is on a more sustainable 
ŰƩƩǣŽƞűʆ ǣŸŘ ǫƞŊŘǏǣĬŽƞǣȉ Ĭƞő ŰƓǫŊǣǫĬǣŽƩƞǗ ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ƜĬŽƞ ǗƩǫǏŊŘ ƩŰ ŽƞŊƩƜŘ ŊƩƞǣŽƞǫŘǗ ǣƩ ŊŸĬƓƓŘƞűŘ ƓƩƞűŘǏ ǣŘǏƜ őŘŊŽǗŽƩƞ making 
as such reserves are held at the higher end of the reserve policy.   
 
The minimum reserve should be maintained where possible and not used for standard operational expenditure. The reserve is held 
to meet the objectives described above and as such should only be drawn from in the event of a risk materialising or a short term 
shortfall in income to meet exp enditure.  This policy is subject to an annual review and will be adjusted to ensure the needs of the 
academy are met dependent on the financial environment at the time.  
 
Investment Policy:  
 
Although the current economic climate is not conducive to achiev ing high returns in low risk investments, the Trustees are 
committed to ensuring that all funds managed by the academy on their behalf are used in such a way as to maximise return whil st 
minimising risk. This is not a key activity for the school and the ri sk profile of any investments made should be low but should 
provide an effective utilisation of school assets.  
 
The cash held by the school will only be deposited in bank accounts with an FSA Approved provider. Where cash is not required  
to meet operating  expenses, the Trustees will seek to invest this in higher rate, low risk deposit accounts.  
  
Where significant funds have been accumulated that are not required in the short term for operational expenses, or as part of  a 
planned surplus for a specific project, Trustees may consider the investment of these funds in order to generate a longer term 
income or capital fund. The approval of the Resources Committee is required before any investments are made.  
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainty:  
 
The most obvious risk to the academy at this present time is the impact of the COVID -19 (coronavirus) pandemic.  In order to 
reduce the risk of transmission of the virus, the school has had to adapt many of its normal operating procedures.  This has had an 
impact on the experience of the students and staff at the school as well as incurring significant unplanned expenditure.  
 
What is unknown at this stage is the impact of the pandemic on the emotional health and wellbeing of students and also their 
academic attainment.  We are aware that there is much support needed for students to ensure that attendance and behaviour 
continues to remain outstanding given the changes that have had to be made to the structure of the day, access to pastoral su pport, 
play space, lesson delivery etc.  We are also aware of the need to support students as they prepare for the summer examination 
series 2021.  We have amended the delivery of examination courses to reflect the challenges of partial school closure and rem ote 
learning.   
 
The government have stated their desire to ensure that examinations take place in 2021.  We welcome the news that the exams 
will mostly take place after the May half term break ensuring an additional 3 weeks of teaching time for these students.  Thi s is to 
allow scope for schools to support students to catch up on their learning following lock down and any periods of self isolation.  
There is a need for a national contingency plan should examinations not take place.  The school will continue to respond to any 
directives from the DfE or Ofqual on these issues. 
 
The ethos of the school is built on the firm belief that personal, as well as academic, outcomes are important for students.  With 
the changes due to COVID-19, many of the activities that contribute to the personal development of students have been curtailed.  
However, the staff are doing their best to ensure that students do engage in the wider curriculum and continue to access addi tional 
opportunities where possible.  A good example of this is the way in which the school will be providing mock interviews for student 
ǫǗŽƞű Ĭ ʨȂŽǏǣǫĬƓʩ ŘȈǌŘǏŽŘƞŊŘ ȃŽǣŸ ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘǏǗʋ 
 
÷ŸŘ ǏŽǗƐ ǣƩ ǗǣǫőŘƞǣǗ Ĭƞő ǗǣĬŰŰ őǫŘ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ ǌĬƞőŘƜŽŊ ŸĬǗ ŉŘŘƞ ŸŽűŸƓŽűŸǣŘő Žƞ ǣŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ŰƩǏƜĬƓ ǏŽǗƐ ĬǗǗŘǗǗƜŘƞǣʋ  ÷ŸŘǏŘ ŽǗ űǏŘat 
uncertainty in our ability to  ensure that all students receive a face to face educational experience at the present time.  The 
government have given schools a legal duty to provide continuity of education for those students that are self - isolating and we 
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have a remote learning contingency plan in place should we need to move teaching to this format.  What is harder to plan for is 
significant staff absence and we will do our best to ensure that the impact of any staff absence is minimised.  
 
 
Plans for Future Periods:  
 
The strategic priorities for the school for the period 2020 -21 have been set in response to the pandemic and the continued 
disruption to the provision of education for student at the school.  These priorities, and the actions to support delivering these, 
are listed below. 
 
1. To provide an educational environment in which the risk of COVID -19 (coronavirus) spreading through direct and indirect 

transmission is minimised.  

Action:  Implement a thorough risk assessment which takes a range of approaches and actions, in line with go vernment 
guidance, to substantially reduce the risk of transmission.  
 

2. To provide an environment in which the emotional wellbeing of students and staff is a priority as we open the school to the 
whole school community.  

Action: Have a well -considered approach to pastoral care which is clearly communicated to students, parents and staff, and 
meets the needs of our school community. 
 

3. To provide a high quality learning experience that allows students to make strong academic progress and builds on their 
experience of home learning during school closure. 

Action: Plan a carefully considered curriculum and assessment experience which takes account of the impact of school closure 
on curriculum coverage and delivery. 
 

4. To build on the knowledge and experience gained by staff during school closure, with specific reference to the use of ICT to 
support learning and independent study.  

Action: Facilitate CPD opportunities which support the sharing of good practice developed during school closure.  
 

5. To ensure the school continues to deliver on key actions which bring about school improvement over the next 3 -5 years 

Action: Implement key changes in structures and systems that will move the school forward despite the legacy of COVID -19. 
 
Auditor:  
 
In so far as the Trustees are aware: 
 
ʄ ǣŸŘǏŘ ŽǗ ƞƩ ǏŘƓŘȂĬƞǣ ĬǫőŽǣ ŽƞŰƩǏƜĬǣŽƩƞ ƩŰ ȃŸŽŊŸ ǣŸŘ ŊŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉʩǗ ĬǫőŽǣƩǏ ŽǗ ǫƞĬȃĬǏŘʐ 

and 
ʄ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 

information and to establish that the a uditor is aware of that information.  
 
÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ ǏŘǌƩǏǣʆ ŽƞŊƩǏǌƩǏĬǣŽƞű Ĭ ǗǣǏĬǣŘűŽŊ ǏŘǌƩǏǣʆ ȃĬǗ ĬǌǌǏƩȂŘő ŉȉ ƩǏőŘǏ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ŉƩĬǏő ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʆ ĬǗ ǣŸŘ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉ őŽǏŘŊǣƩǏǗʆ on 
12 th DŘŊŘƜŉŘǏ ɁȿɀɈ Ĭƞő ǗŽűƞŘő Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ ŉƩĬǏőʩǗ ŉŘŸĬƓŰ ŉȉʅ 
 

 
 
Steve Ellison 
Chair of Trustees 
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Governance Statement  
 
Scope of Responsibility:  
 
!Ǘ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʆ ȃŘ ĬŊƐƞƩȃƓŘőűŘ ȃŘ ŸĬȂŘ ƩȂŘǏĬƓƓ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣȉ ŰƩǏ ŘƞǗǫǏŽƞű ǣŸĬǣ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ŸĬǗ Ĭƞ ŘŰŰŘŊǣŽȂŘ 
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a  system is designed to manage rather than eliminate 
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss.  
 
As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of t ŸŘ űǫŽőĬƞŊŘ Žƞ DŰLʩǗ eƩȂŘǏƞĬƞŊŘ lĬƞőŉƩƩƐ Ĭƞő ŊƩƜǌŘǣŘƞŊȉ ŰǏĬƜŘȃƩǏƐ ŰƩǏ 
governance. 
 
The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial 
controls conform with the requirements of  both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements 
Ĭƞő ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣŽŘǗ ĬǗǗŽűƞŘő ǣƩ Žǣ Žƞ ǣŸŘ ŰǫƞőŽƞű ĬűǏŘŘƜŘƞǣ ŉŘǣȃŘŘƞ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ êŘŊǏŘǣĬǏȉ ƩŰ êǣĬte 
for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.  
 
Governance:  
 
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trusteesʩ âŘǌƩǏǣ Ĭƞő Žƞ ǣŸŘ êǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣ ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ 
responsibilities.  The full Board of Trustees has formally met 3 times during the reporting period (one meeting was cancelled due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic).  Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:  
 

Trustee  Meeting 
Attended  

Out of a 
possible 

 Maria Banham 1 3 
Ted Bloomfield 3 3 
Gordon Bryant 2 3 

Sue Cade 3 3 
Liz Charles 3 3 

Steve Ellison 3 3 
Jason Fearn-Smith 2 3 

Rob Gammon 3 3 
Charlotte Hawkins  2 3 

Charlotte Hollingshead 2 3 
Becky Jacobs 1 2 

Nicholas Johnson 1 3 
Lucy Kennaway 3 3 
John Lavender 3 3 

Ruth Miles-Haynes 2 3 
Robin Mitchell 3 3 

Dave Nicholson 3 3 
Susan Starr 1 3 

Petrina Tipping 3 3 
Susan Wood 3 3 

  
Since the last reporting period, Mrs R Jacobs, Mrs R Miles-Haynes, Mr R Mitchell and Mrs S Starr and have left the Board of Trustees 
and Mrs. M Banham, Mr. N Johnson were appointed.    
 
The Trustees maintain a full skills audit of the board members in order to inform future appointments and identify any gaps in 
knowledge as well as support development of existing boar d members. This has been renewed during the course of this year.  
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The table below describes the three formal committees of the Board of Trustees during the period and the attendance is shown 
in the following table.  
 

Committee Responsibilities 

Resources 
Meets five times a year dealing with all matters relating to finance, sites and buildings. 
This year met 4 times due to one meeting being cancelled as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic.  

Audit  Meets three times a year dealing with the internal scr utiny and audit requirements of 
the trust.  

Curriculum & Quality Meets five times a year dealing with all matters relating to the quality of teaching and 
learning including the curriculum and general staffing issues.  

Pay & Performance 
Committee 

Meets once a year dealing with the specific issues relating to performance related pay 
ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ǗǣĬŰŰ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ lŘĬőǣŘĬŊŸŘǏʩǗ âŘƜǫƞŘǏĬǣŽƩƞʋ  

 
 
 

 Resources Audit  Curriculum & Quality Pay & Performance 

Trustee  Meeting 
Attended  

Out of a 
possible 

Meeting 
Attended  

Out of a 
possible 

Meeting 
Attended  

Out of a 
possible 

Meeting 
Attended  

Out of a 
possible 

 Maria Banham 3 3 3 3 -  -  -  -  
Ted Bloomfield -  -  -  -  5 5 1 1 
Gordon Bryant 4 4 3 3 -  -  -  -  

Sue Cade -  -  -  -  2 5 1 1 
Liz Charles -  -  -  -  5 5 1 1 

Steve Ellison 2 4 2 3 -  -  1 1 
Jason Fearn-Smith -  -  -  -  2 5 -  -  

Rob Gammon 4 4 -  -  5 5 1 1 
Charlotte Hawkins  3 4 -  -  -  -  -  -  

Charlotte Hollingshead -  -  -  -  4 5 -  -  
Becky Jacobs -  -  -  -  1 3 -  -  

Nicholas Johnson 2 3 2 3 -  -  -  -  
Lucy Kennaway 2 4 2 3 -  -  -  -  
John Lavender 4 4 3 3 -  -  -  -  

Ruth Miles-Haynes -  -  -  -  5 5 -  -  
Robin Mitchell -  -  -  -  4 5 1 1 

Dave Nicholson -  -  -  -  4 5 -  -  
Susan Starr 3 4 2 3 -  -  -  -  

Petrina Tipping -  -  -  -  4 5 -  -  
Sue Wood -  -  -  -  5 5 -  -  

 
As well as the above formal committees the Board of Trustees has established a working party focused on academic data. It does 
not hold any delegated powers or decision making responsibility however supports the relevant committee by deepening trustees  
understanding of academic data. 
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Review of Value for Money  
 
As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use o f 
public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal ou tcomes 
achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 
 
÷ŸŘ !ŊŊƩǫƞǣŽƞű ¼ŰŰŽŊŘǏ ŊƩƞǗŽőŘǏǗ ŸƩȃ ǣŸŘ ǣǏǫǗǣʩǗ ǫǗŘ ƩŰ ŽǣǗ ǏŘǗƩǫǏŊŘǗ ŸĬǗ ǌǏƩȂŽőŘő űƩƩő ȂĬƓǫŘ ŰƩǏ ƜƩƞŘȉ őǫǏŽƞű ŘĬŊŸ ĬŊĬőŘƜŽŊ 
year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where 
available. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:  
 

1. Improving outcomes with appropriate use of financial oversight and governance  
 
The School is governed by a body drawn from staff, parents, and those appointed by the Trustees themselves to ensure 
that the governing board maintain the breadth of skills required to support and challenge the school. The Board of 
Trustees meets at least fƩǫǏ ǣŽƜŘǗ Ĭ ȉŘĬǏ Ĭƞő ŽǗ ŊƩƜƜŽǣǣŘő ǣƩ ŘƞǗǫǏŽƞű ǣŸĬǣ űƩȂŘǏƞĬƞŊŘ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ êŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ 
management is robust. It approves the budget and reviews it throughout the year and is mindful of the need to balance 
expenditure against income to ensure the Academy rŘƜĬŽƞǗ Ĭ ʦűƩŽƞű ŊƩƞŊŘǏƞʧʋ !Ǘ ǗǫŊŸ ǣŸŘ ŉǫőűŘǣ ŽǗ ĬƓȃĬȉǗ ŊƩƜǌƓŘǣŘő 
on an annual income vs. expenditure basis with little or no reliance on the schools reserves. The Board of Trustees takes 
an active interest in teaching and learning within the Academy, recei ving updates on tracking data and holding the Senior 
Leadership Team accountable for performance. 
 
More detailed financial oversight is supplied by the Resources Committee, which currently meets five times per year. The 
Committee has a clear Terms of Reference which is reviewed annually. The Committee membership includes the 
Headteacher. The Committee receives regular budget monitoring management reports which are provided in a consistent 
format and with explanatory notes. The audit committee receives 2 rep orts a year from the appointed firm to support the 
internal scrutiny function which tests the schools controls and financial management systems. The Resources Committee 
considers and ratifies policies, scrutinises the schools budget forecast and ensures that the school complies with agreed 
policies and procedures. Spending proposals outside of the budget setting process are brought to the Resources 
committee for approval. The Committee considers the annual reports and financial statements, and makes 
recommendations to the Board of Trustees, who approve the Annual Report and Accounts.  
 
÷ŸŘ âŘǗƩǫǏŊŘǗ =ƩƜƜŽǣǣŘŘ ŽǗ ĬƓǗƩ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉƓŘ ŰƩǏ ƜĬŽƞǣŘƞĬƞŊŘ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ êŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ âŽǗƐ âŘűŽǗǣŘǏʆ ȃŸŽŊŸ Žǣ ǏŘȂŽŘȃǗ Ĭǣ ŉŽ-
annually, taking into account changes in the wider political a nd economic climate. This helps direct the school plan 
strategically to avoid wasting time, money or resources.  
 
÷ŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ǗŘƞŽƩǏ ƓŘĬőŘǏǗŸŽǌ ǣŘĬƜ ǏŘȂŽŘȃǗ ǣŸŘ őŘǣĬŽƓŘő ŉǫőűŘǣ ǌŘǏŰƩǏƜĬƞŊŘ ŘȂŘǏȉ ŸĬƓŰ ǣŘǏƜ ĬǗ Ĭ ǗǣĬƞőŽƞű ĬűŘƞőĬ ŽǣŘƜ 
in senior leadership meetings so that the impact on teaching and learning and hence value for money is a key consideration 
across the senior staff. The school has a clear financial delegation and control framework as set out in our financial policy 
and management handbook (available on our website) which details budget holders and other responsibilities and 
accountabilities. When setting the budget the Senior Leadership Team and Trustees, consider a number of options and 
scenarios to both deliver the core aims and objectives of the academy and elements of the school development plan that 
require specific financial and other resources. 
 

2. Improved Purchasing 
 
÷ŸŘ êŊŸƩƩƓ ǣĬƐŘǗ Ĭ ǌǏǫőŘƞǣ ĬǌǌǏƩĬŊŸ ǣƩ ŘȈǌŘƞőŽǣǫǏŘʋ !Ǘ ĬǏƩǫƞő ɇɄˡ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ űƩȂŘǏƞƜŘƞǣ ŉǫőűŘǣ ŽǗ ǗǌŘƞǣ Ʃƞ 
staffing, the s taffing is reviewed annually to ensure that value for money in meeting the needs of our students and 
delivering the objectives detailed in the school development plan. Temporary changes to permanent contracts are 
frequently used to ensure that longer term value for money is achieved. 
 
!ƓƓ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ǗŊŸƩƩƓʩǗ ǗǫǌǌƓȉ ŊƩƞǣǏĬŊǣǗ ĬǏŘ ǏŘűǫƓĬǏƓȉ ǏŘȂŽŘȃŘő ʘĬǣ ƓŘĬǗǣ ĬƞƞǫĬƓƓȉʙ ǣƩ ŘƞǗǫǏŘ ǣŸŘȉ ĬǏŘ őŘƓŽȂŘǏŽƞű ȂĬƓǫŘ ŰƩǏ ƜƩƞŘȉ 
and re-negotiated / tendered as appropriate and remain fit for purpose. A particular focus of recent  contract negotiation 
has been success criteria and ensuring that contract wording is focussed on the positive outcomes for the school. The 
school has a clear procurement and purchasing policy as laid down in the Financial Policy and Management Handbook 
wh ich is available on our website. All purchasing follows best value principles. A scheme of delegation is in place, as are 
separation of duties. Purchases of over £5,000 require three written quotations, and contracts and orders over £10,000 
are authorised by the Resources Committee. All goods and services ordered with a value of over £50,000, or for a series 
of contracts which in total exceed £50,000 are subject to formal tendering procedures and authorised by the Resources 
Committee. Competitive tendering procedures are detailed in the Finance Policy and Management Handbook. 
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Locally sourced and national benchmarking data is used to inform the procurement process; however, sharing 
procurement experiences, detailed approaches to specific requirements and lessons learnt with other organisations has 
delivered significant benefits. Where possible and beneficial, the school will seek to obtain best value from economies of 
scale purchasing either between schools, frameworks or using Devon county purchasing service s. Caution must be 
exercised however as we have found that the cost associated with administration and management of some larger bulk 
contracts (such as cleaning and grounds maintenance and payroll) have not provided value for money and alternative 
approaches have been adopted. Options for different approaches for delivery of the schools core services are always 
considered when contracts are reviewed (e.g. bringing Payroll in house which increased the quality of service provided to 
employees and reduced the total cost by greater than 30%).  

 
3. Improving Income Generation 

 
The school has a lettings policy in place and explores opportunities to generate income through the hire of the premises 
outside of core curriculum time. A proactive approach is taken towards bids for possible future funding as well as seeking 
opportunities to support the wider educational community in school improvement and support services.  
 

4. Reviewing Costs and Managing Risks 
 
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the major risks, focusing on operational, financial, governance, compliance and 
reputational risk, and has taken steps to mitigate likely risks and to ensure regular monitoring of the primary areas of 
potential risk. All of these are documented in an academy risk register which is updat ed and reviewed biennially. 
 
The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Academy annually and we have a Reserves Policy in place which is again 
reviewed annually. The reserves policy is maintained to deal with some unforeseen risks, those that are cost prohibitive 
to mitigate further, those that are not covered by our comprehensive insurance policy and provide sufficient working 
capital to cover any delays between receiving income and committing expenditure. Insurance levels are reviewed annually 
to ensure appropriate cover is in place and the solution is cost effective. 

 
5. Lessons Learned 

 
The very close link between the curriculum and the budget is even more evident now than ever. The school recognises 
the importance of early information gathering with reg ards to option choices at year 9 and 11 so that the curriculum and 
staffing match can be as accurate as possible. This enables the school to design a timetable and staff timetable which 
minimises any wastage in staffing costs. As the staffing costs for the  school are high compared to other schools we know 
we have to ensure that this provides value for money in terms of outcomes for students. Currently a large number of our 
staff are highly experienced thus generate high salary costs. However, we have learnt  that in terms of student outcomes 
we would always appoint the best person for the role irrespective of their staffing cost as they are likely to provide the 
best outcomes for the students. Our results justify this budgetary decision as does our Outstandin g OfSTED judgement 
in all categories in March 2014. 
 

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control:  
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy T rust 
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to 
ƜĬƞĬűŘ ǣŸŘƜ ŘŰŰŽŊŽŘƞǣƓȉʆ ŘŰŰŘŊǣŽȂŘƓȉ Ĭƞő ŘŊƩƞƩƜŽŊĬƓƓȉʋ ÷ŸŘ ǗȉǗǣŘƜ ƩŰ ŽƞǣŘǏƞĬƓ ŊƩƞǣǏƩƓ ŸĬǗ ŉŘŘƞ Žƞ ǌƓĬŊŘ Žƞ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ 
Academy Trust for the period 1 st September 2019 to 31 st August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
financial statements.  
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Capacity to Handle Risk:  
 
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is expos ed together with the operating, financial 
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there i s a 
formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's s ignificant risks that has been in place for 
the period ending 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process i s 
regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.  
 
The Risk and Control Framework:  
 
The AcĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ǗȉǗǣŘƜ ƩŰ ŽƞǣŘǏƞĬƓ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ŊƩƞǣǏƩƓ ŽǗ ŉĬǗŘő Ʃƞ Ĭ ŰǏĬƜŘȃƩǏƐ ƩŰ ǏŘűǫƓĬǏ ƜĬƞĬűŘƜŘƞǣ ŽƞŰƩǏƜĬǣŽƩƞ Ĭƞő 
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, i t 
includes: 
 
ʄ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are 

reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees 
ʄ regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the  forecasts and of 

major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; 
ʄ setting targets to measure financial and other performance;  
ʄ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.  
ʄ delegation of authority and s egregation of duties;  
ʄ identification and management of risks.  
  
The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint an external f irm to 
complete a programme of assurance work. For the year ending 31 st August 2020, Griffin Accountancy performed two separate 
ŽƞǣŘǏƞĬƓ ĬǫőŽǣ ǏŘȂŽŘȃǗ őǫǏŽƞű ǣŸŘ ǗǌǏŽƞű Ĭƞő ǗǫƜƜŘǏ ǣŘǏƜǗʋ ! ǏĬƞűŘ ƩŰ ŊŸŘŊƐǗ Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ Ĭƞő űƩȂŘǏƞĬƞŊŘ 
systems were completed, including testing Fixed Assets processes, Governance regularity and risk management, purchases and 
cash payments, financial budgeting and monitoring and income. The work of the internal auditors is based on risks identified by 
the Audit Committee.  
 
Review of Effectiveness:  
 
As Accounting Officer,  the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During 
the period in question the review has been informed by:  
 
ʄ the work of the audit committee and internal scrutiny function;  
ʄ the work of the ext ernal auditor;   
ʄ the work of the Business Manager within the Academy Trust who has responsibility for the development and maintenance 

of the internal control framework.  
 
The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the 
Resources Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.  
 
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 10 th December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 

 
 
Steve Ellison       Robert Gammon 
Chair of Trustees       Accounting Officer  
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance  

 
!Ǘ ĬŊŊƩǫƞǣŽƞű ƩŰŰŽŊŘǏ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ q ŸĬȂŘ ŊƩƞǗŽőŘǏŘő Ɯȉ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣȉ ǣƩ ƞƩǣŽfy the Academy Trust Board 
of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non -compliance with 
ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and  the Secretary of 
State. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook.  
 
I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of fun ds by the 
academy trust, or material non-ŊƩƜǌƓŽĬƞŊŘ ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ ǣŘǏƜǗ Ĭƞő ŊƩƞőŽǣŽƩƞǗ ƩŰ ŰǫƞőŽƞű ǫƞőŘǏ ǣŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣʩǗ ŰǫƞőŽƞű ĬűǏŘŘƜŘƞǣ 
and the Academies Financial Handbook. 
 
I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non -compliance have been discovered to date. If any 
instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.  
 
 
 
 
 
Robert Gammon 
Accounting Officer  
 
10 th December 2020   
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êǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣ ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ âŘǗǌƩƞǗibilities  

 
The Trustees ʘȃŸƩ ĬŊǣ ĬǗ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ŰƩǏ ŊŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ ĬŊǣŽȂŽǣŽŘǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ Ĭƞő ĬǏŘ ĬƓǗƩ ǣŸŘ őŽǏŘŊǣƩǏǗ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ 
Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trusteesʩ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞcial 
statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom  
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.  
 
Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the Trustees must 
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of  the 
Charitable Company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that 
period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to: 
 
ʄ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
ʄ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts  

Direction 2019 to 2020;  
ʄ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
ʄ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been f ollowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 

explained in the financial statements; and  
ʄ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Charitable 

Company will continue in business.  
 
The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Charitable 
=ƩƜǌĬƞȉʩǗ ǣǏĬƞǗĬŊǣŽƩƞǗ Ĭƞő őŽǗŊƓƩǗŘ ȃŽǣŸ ǏŘĬǗƩƞĬŉƓŘ ĬŊŊǫǏĬŊȉ Ĭǣ Ĭƞȉ ǣŽƜŘ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǌƩǗŽǣŽƩƞ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ =ŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ =ƩƜǌĬƞȉ Ĭƞő 
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Charitable Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other i rregularities. 
 
The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies financial and other 
controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also r esponsible for 
ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.  
 
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Charitable 
=ƩƜǌĬƞȉʩǗ ȃŘŉǗŽǣŘʋ Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.  
 
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 10 th December 2020 and signed on its be half by: 
 
 

 
 
Steve Ellison 
Chair of Trustees 
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qƞőŘǌŘƞőŘƞǣ !ǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ âŘǌƩǏǣ Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ dŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ êǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ <ƩĬǏő ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ 
£ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ 
 
Opinion  
ĖŘ ŸĬȂŘ ĬǫőŽǣŘő ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ŰƩǏ ǣŸe year ended 31 August 2020 which 
comprises the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating income and expenditure account, the Balance Sheet, Cash Flow 
Statement and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting poli cies.  The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdo m 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS102 -  The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements:. 

¶ űŽȂŘ Ĭ ǣǏǫŘ Ĭƞő ŰĬŽǏ ȂŽŘȃ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ǗǣĬǣŘ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ĬŰŰĬŽǏǗ ĬǗ Ĭǣ ɂɀ !ǫűǫǗǣ ɁȿɁȿ Ĭƞő ƩŰ ŽǣǗ ǏŘǗǫƓǣǗ ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ȉŘĬǏ ǣŸŘƞ 
ended;  

¶ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and in 
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;  

¶ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Annual Accounts Direction 2019 
to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

 
Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣŽŘǗ ǫƞőŘǏ ǣŸƩǗŘ ǗǣĬƞőĬǏőǗ ĬǏŘ ŰǫǏǣŸŘǏ őŘǗŊǏŽŉŘő Žƞ ǣŸŘ !ǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our  
ĬǫőŽǣ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ Žƞ ǣŸŘ þ£ʆ ŽƞŊƓǫőŽƞű ǣŸŘ dâ=ʩǗ LǣŸŽŊal Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and  
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
 
Conclusion relating to going  concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where: 
 

¶ the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not ap propriate; 
or 

¶ the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant 
őƩǫŉǣ ĬŉƩǫǣ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ĬŉŽƓŽǣȉ ǣƩ ŊƩƞǣŽƞǫŘ ǣƩ ĬőƩǌǣ ǣŸŘ űƩŽƞű ŊƩƞŊŘǏƞ ŉĬǗŽǗ ƩŰ ĬŊŊƩǫƞǣŽƞű ŰƩǏ Ĭ ǌŘǏŽƩő ƩŰ Ĭǣ ƓŘĬǗǣ 
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 
Other information (covers the Reference and Administrative Details)  
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information  included in the annual 
ǏŘǌƩǏǣʆ ƩǣŸŘǏ ǣŸĬƞ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ Ĭƞő ƩǫǏ ĬǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ǣŸŘǏŘƩƞʋ ¼ǫǏ ƩǌŽƞŽƩƞ Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ őƩŘǗ ƞƩt cover 
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do no t express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s o, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements , we 
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatem ent in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the 
other information. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informati on, we 
are required to report that fact.  
 
We have nothing to repo rt in this regard.  
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qƞőŘǌŘƞőŘƞǣ !ǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ âŘǌƩǏǣ Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ dŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ êǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ <ƩĬǏő ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ 
£ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006  
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the  course of the audit: 
 

¶ the information given in the Trustees Report (incorporating the Strategic Report and the Directors Report) for the financial 
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

 
¶ the Trustees Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception  
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the aud it, we have 
ƞƩǣ ŽőŘƞǣŽŰŽŘő ƜĬǣŘǏŽĬƓ ƜŽǗǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ Žƞ ǣŸŘ eƩȂŘǏƞĬƞŊŘ êǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣ Ĭƞő ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ âŘǌƩǏǣʋ 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, i n our 
opinion: 
 
¶ adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not 

visited by us; or 
 
¶ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or  

 
¶ certain disclosures of Trusteesʩ ǏŘƜǫƞeration specified by law are not made; or 

 
¶   we have not received the information and explanations we require for our audit.  
 
Responsibilities of Trustees  
!Ǘ ŘȈǌƓĬŽƞŘő ƜƩǏŘ ŰǫƓƓȉ Žƞ ǣŸŘ êǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣ ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ âŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣŽŘǗ ʖǗŘǣ Ʃǫǣ Ʃƞ ǌĬűŘ Ɂɂʗʆ ǣŸŘ ÷ǏǫǗtees are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal co ntrol as 
the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that ar e free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
qƞ ǌǏŘǌĬǏŽƞű ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗʆ ǣŸŘ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ĬǏŘ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉƓŘ ŰƩǏ ĬǗǗŘǗǗŽƞű ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ĬŉŽƓŽǣȉ ǣƩ ŊƩƞǣŽƞǫŘ ĬǗ Ĭ űƩŽƞg 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
!ǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ âŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣŽŘǗ ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ĬǫőŽǣ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
ƜŽǗǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣʆ ȃŸŘǣŸŘǏ őǫŘ ǣƩ ŰǏĬǫő ƩǏ ŘǏǏƩǏʆ Ĭƞő ǣƩ ŽǗǗǫŘ Ĭƞ ĬǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ǣŸĬǣ ŽƞŊƓǫőŘǗ ƩǫǏ ƩǌŽƞŽƩƞʋ âŘĬǗƩƞĬŉƓŘ ĬǗǗǫǏĬƞŊŘ is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a materi al 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in t he 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scep ticism 
throughout the audit. We also:  
 

¶ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffi cient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations , or the override 
of internal control.  

 
¶ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness o Ű ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ŽƞǣŘǏƞĬƓ 
control. 
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£ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ 

 
¶ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the Trustees. 
 

¶ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ĬŉŽƓŽǣȉ ǣƩ ŊƩƞǣŽƞǫŘ ĬǗ Ĭ űƩŽƞű ŊƩƞŊŘǏƞʋ qŰ ȃŘ ŊƩƞŊƓǫőŘ ǣŸĬǣ Ĭ ƜĬǣŘǏŽĬƓ ǫƞŊŘǏǣĬŽƞǣȉ ŘȈŽǗǣǗʆ ȃŘ ĬǏŘ ǏŘǎǫŽǏŘő 
ǣƩ őǏĬȃ ĬǣǣŘƞǣŽƩƞ Žƞ ƩǫǏ ĬǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ ǏŘƓĬǣŘő őŽǗŊƓƩǗǫǏŘǗ Žƞ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ ƩǏʆ if such disclosures are 
ŽƞĬőŘǎǫĬǣŘʆ ǣƩ ƜƩőŽŰȉ ƩǫǏ ƩǌŽƞŽƩƞʋ ¼ǫǏ ŊƩƞŊƓǫǗŽƩƞǗ ĬǏŘ ŉĬǗŘő Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ ĬǫőŽǣ ŘȂŽőŘƞŊŘ ƩŉǣĬŽƞŘő ǫǌ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ őĬǣŘ ƩŰ ƩǫǏ ĬǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Academy to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
¶ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 

¶ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within 
the Academy to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the Academy audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficien cies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
Use of our report  
÷ŸŽǗ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ ŽǗ ƜĬőŘ ǗƩƓŘƓȉ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ ŊŸĬǏŽǣĬŉƓŘ ŊƩƜǌĬƞȉʩǗ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʆ ĬǗ Ĭ ŉƩőȉʆ Žƞ ĬŊŊƩǏőĬƞŊŘ ȃŽǣŸ =ŸĬǌǣŘǏ ɂ ƩŰ ßĬǏǣ ɀɅ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ 
Companies Act 2006.  Our audit work has been undertake ƞ ǗƩ ǣŸĬǣ ȃŘ ƜŽűŸǣ ǗǣĬǣŘ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ǣŸƩǗŘ ƜĬǣǣŘǏǗ ȃŘ 
ĬǏŘ ǏŘǎǫŽǏŘő ǣƩ ǗǣĬǣŘ ǣƩ ǣŸŘƜ Žƞ Ĭƞ ĬǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ Ĭƞő ŰƩǏ ƞƩ ƩǣŸŘǏ ǌǫǏǌƩǗŘʋ  ÷Ʃ ǣŸŘ ŰǫƓƓŘǗǣ ŘȈǣŘƞǣ ǌŘǏƜŽǣǣŘő ŉȉ ƓĬȃʆ ȃŘ őƩ not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the A cademy and its Trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, 
or for the opinion we have formed.  
 
 

 
ʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇ 
SIMON LEWIS (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of Thompson Jenner LLP, Statutory Auditor  
1 Colleton Crescent, 
Exeter, Devon. 
EX2 4DG  
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qƞőŘǌŘƞőŘƞǣ âŘǌƩǏǣŽƞű !ǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ !ǗǗǫǏĬƞŊŘ âŘǌƩǏǣ Ʃƞ âŘűǫƓĬǏŽǣȉ ǣƩ ǣŸŘ <ƩĬǏő ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ƩŰ 
÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ¥ŽƜŽǣŘő Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ LőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞ dǫƞőŽƞű !űŘƞŊȉ 
 
In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 9 March 2015  and further to the requirements of the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an engagement 
to obtain limited assurance about whether  the expenditure disbursed and incom e received by the academy trust during the period 
1 September 209 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions 
conform to the authorities which govern them.  
 
This report is made solely to the <ƩĬǏő ƩŰ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ Lêd! Žƞ ĬŊŊƩǏőĬƞŊŘ ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ ǣŘǏƜǗ 
ƩŰ ƩǫǏ ŘƞűĬűŘƜŘƞǣ ƓŘǣǣŘǏʋ ¼ǫǏ ȃƩǏƐ ŸĬǗ ŉŘŘƞ ǫƞőŘǏǣĬƐŘƞ ǗƩ ǣŸĬǣ ȃŘ ƜŽűŸǣ ǗǣĬǣŘ ǣƩ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ 
ESFA those matters we are required to state to it in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
őƩ ƞƩǣ ĬŊŊŘǌǣ ƩǏ ĬǗǗǫƜŘ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣȉ ǣƩ ĬƞȉƩƞŘ ƩǣŸŘǏ ǣŸĬƞ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ Lêd!ʆ ŰƩǏ ƩǫǏ ȃƩǏƐʆ ŰƩǏ ǣhis 
report, or for the conclusion we hav e formed.  
 
âŘǗǌŘŊǣŽȂŘ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣŽŘǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ĬŊŊƩǫƞǣŽƞű ƩŰŰŽŊŘǏ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ ǏŘǌƩǏǣŽƞű ĬǫőŽǣƩǏ 
 
÷ŸŘ !ŊŊƩǫƞǣŽƞű ¼ŰŰŽŊŘǏ ŽǗ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉƓŘʆ ǫƞőŘǏ ǣŸŘ ǏŘǎǫŽǏŘƜŘƞǣǗ ƩŰ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ŰǫƞőŽƞű ĬűǏŘŘƜŘƞǣ ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ 
Secretary of State for Education dated 31 st March 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2019, 
for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financ ial 
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.  
 
¼ǫǏ ǏŘǗǌƩƞǗŽŉŽƓŽǣŽŘǗ ŰƩǏ ǣŸŽǗ ŘƞűĬűŘƜŘƞǣ ĬǏŘ ŘǗǣĬŉƓŽǗŸŘő Žƞ ǣŸŘ þƞŽǣŘő £ŽƞűőƩƜ ŉȉ ƩǫǏ ǌǏƩŰŘǗǗŽƩƞʩǗ ŘǣŸŽŊĬƓ űǫŽőĬƞŊŘ Ĭƞő ĬǏŘ ǣo 
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and  the requirements of the Academies Accounts 
Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests 
that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the peri od 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 
have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities  which 
govern them. 
 
Approach  
 
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies: Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the ESFA. We 
performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.  
 
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in  order 
to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.  
 
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not 
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable 
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 
 
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regǫƓĬǏŽǣȉ Ĭƞő ǌǏƩǌǏŽŘǣȉ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣʩǗ 
income and expenditure.  
 
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion have been designed to comply with the requirements set out in The Accounts 
Direction 2019 to 2020 and includes:  
 

¶ Inspection and review of d ocumentation providing evidence of governance procedures  
¶ Evaluation of the system of internal controls for authorisation  and approval 
¶ Performing substantive tests on relevant assumptions  
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qƞőŘǌŘƞőŘƞǣ âŘǌƩǏǣŽƞű !ǫőŽǣƩǏʩǗ !ǗǗǫǏĬƞŊŘ âŘǌƩǏǣ Ʃƞ âŘűǫƓĬǏŽǣȉ ǣƩ the Board of Trustees of 
÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ¥ŽƜŽǣŘő Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ LőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞ dǫƞőŽƞű !űŘƞŊȉ =ƩƞǣŽƞǫŘő 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure dis bursed 
and income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes intended by 
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.  
 
 
 

 
 
ʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇʇ 
SIMON LEWIS (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of Thompson Jenner LLP, Chartered Accountants  
1 Colleton Crescent, 
Exeter, Devon. 
EX2 4DG 
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Statement of Financial Activities for Year to 31 August 2020  
(including Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Total Rec ognised Gains and Losses)  

           
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted 

 
    

Funds General Fixed  Total   Total    Funds Asset Funds 2020   2019   
Note £ £ £ £  £ 

Incoming resources  
     

  
Incoming resources from  

     
  

generated funds: 
     

  
Donations and Capital Grants 2 2,350  200  23,548  26,098   356,463  

Transfer from Local Authority on      
incorporation  

 
-  -  -  -   -  

Income from other trading activities  3 73,688  - -  73,688   91,619  
Investment income 4 7,137  - -  7,137   7,706  
Incoming resources from 

 
      

charitable activities: 
 

      
   Funding for the Academy's  

 
      

   educational operations 5 263,583  5,995,518  - 6,259,101   6,035,312    
       

Total incoming resources  
 

346,758  5,995,718  23,548  6,366,024   6,491,099        
  

Resources expended 
     

  
Cost of generating funds : 

     
  

Fundraising trading  
 

-  -  -  -   -  
Charitable activities: 

 
      

   !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ŘőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞĬƓ ƩǌŘǏĬǣŽƩƞǗ 7 303,736  5,969,938  511,481  6,785,155   6,744,825  
   Development costs 7 - -  -  -   -  
Total resources expende d 6 303,736  5,969,938  511,481  6,785,155   6,744,825    

      
Net incoming (outgoing)  

 
      

resources before transfers  
 

43,022  25,780  (487,933)  (419,131)   (253,726)    
      

Transfers  
 

      
Gross transfers between funds  15 (409,047)  (259,855)  668,902  -   -    

      
Net income / (expenditure) for the 
year 

 
      

(366,025)  (234,075)  180,969  (419,131)   (253,726)    
      

Other recognised gains and losses  
 

      
Actuarial (losses) gains on defined 

 
      

benefit pension schemes 15,25   (308,000)   (308,000)   (470,000)  
Net movement in funds  

 
(366,025)  (542,075)  180,969  (727,131)   (723,726)    

      
Reconciliation of funds  

 
      

Total funds brought forward at 1 
September 2019  15 

      
772,575  (3,002,065)  15,611,788  13,382,298   14,106,024  

Total f unds carried forward at   
 

  

31 August 2020   406,550  (3,544,140)  15,792,757  12,655,167   13,382,298  
 
All of the Academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above financial period.  
 
A Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses is not required as all gains and losses are included in the Statement of 
Financial Activities 
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Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2020  
        
 

  
2020  2020   2019  2019  

 
 

Notes £ £  £ £ 

 Fixed assets 
 

   
  

 Tangible assets 11  15,792,758   
 

15,611,791  

 Total fixed assets 
 

 15,792,758   
 

15,611,791  

 
  

   
  

 Current assets  
 

   
  

 Stock 12 -    1,200   
 Debtors 13 215,141    163,981   
 Cash at bank and in hand 

 
497,689    1,024,003   

 Total current assets 
 

712,830    1,189,185   
 

  
   

  

 Liabilities:  
 

   
  

 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year  14 (276,421)    (361,678)   
 Net current assets  

 
 436,409   

 
827,507  

 
  

   
  

 Total assets less current liabilities 
 

 16,229,167   
 

16,439,298  

 
  

   
  

 
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than 
one year 

14  -    -  

        

 Net assets excluding pension liability  
 

 16,229,167   
 

16,439,298  

 Pension scheme liability 25  (3,574,000)   
 

(3,057,000)  

 
  

   
  

 Net assets including pension liability  
 

 12,655,167   
 

13,382,298  

 
  

   
  

 Funds of the academy:  
 

   
  

 Restricted funds  
 

   
  

   Fixed asset fund(s) 15  15,792,757   
 

15,611,788  

   Pension Reserve 15  (3,574,000)   
 

(3,057,000)  

   Restricted General funds 15  10,694   
 

24,390  

   Restricted General Other Funds 15  19,166   
 

30,545  

 Total restricted funds  
 

 12,248,617   
 

12,609,723  

 
  

   
  

 Unrestricted funds  
 

   
  

   General funds 15  406,550   
 

772,575  

 Total unrestricted funds  
 

 406,550   
 

772,575  

 
  

   
  

 Total Funds  
 

 12,655,167   
 

13,382,298  

        

 
The financial statements on pages 27 to 55 were a pproved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 10 th December 2020 
and signed on their behalf by: 
 

 
 
Steve Ellison 
Chair 



The King’s School Academy Trust 

29 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 August 2020  
    

2020   2019     
£  £    

  
 

 
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  19 135,449   (25,655)     

  
 

 
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 20 7,137   7,706     

  
 

 
Capital expenditure 21 (668,900)   (43,300)     

  
 

 
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the period  22 (526,314)   (61,250)     

  
 

 
Reconciliation o f net cash flow to movement in net funds        

  
 

      
 Net Funds at 1 September 2019   1,024,003   1,085,253  

 
  

  
 

 Net funds at 31 August 2020  
 

497,689   1,024,003  
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ending August 2020  
 
Note 1. Statement of accounting policies:  
 
Basis of Preparation  
 
The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporti ng Standard Applicable in the UK and  Republic of Ireland (FRS 
102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicabl e in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities 
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies 
!Ŋǣ ɁȿȿɅʋ ÷ŸŘ £ŽƞűʩǗ êŊŸƩƩƓ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣ ƜŘŘǣǗ ǣŸŘ őŘŰŽƞŽǣŽƩƞ ƩŰ Ĭ ǌǫŉƓŽŊ ŉŘƞŘfit entity under FRS 102.  
 
A summary of the principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, except where noted, is set out below.  
 
Going Concern  
  
The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The Truste es 
make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements 
and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fut ure 
Ĭƞő ǣŸŘǏŘ ĬǏŘ ƞƩ ƜĬǣŘǏŽĬƓ ǫƞŊŘǏǣĬŽƞǣŽŘǗ ĬŉƩǫǣ ǣŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣʩǗ ĬŉŽƓŽǣȉ ǣƩ ŊƩƞtinue as a going concern, thus they continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.  
 
Incoming Resources  
 
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, certainty of  receipt and the amount 
can be measured with sufficient reliability.  
 
¶ Grants receivable  

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific 
purposes but not expended during the p eriod is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received 
in advance of meeting any performance related conditions and there is not unconditional entitlement to the income, its 
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the 
income is accrued.  

 
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable an d any 
abatement in respect of the per iod is deducted from income and recognised as a liability. 
 
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital gra nts 
are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and 
are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.  
 

 
¶ Donations  

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where th e receipt is 
probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 
 

¶ Other income  

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the goods have  been 
provided or on completion of the service. 
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Note 1. Statement of accounting policies (Continued):  
 

ʄ Donated goods, facilities and services  
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. If it 
is practical to assess the fair ȂĬƓǫŘ Ĭǣ ǏŘŊŘŽǌǣʆ Žǣ ŽǗ ǏŘŊƩűƞŽǗŘő Žƞ ǗǣƩŊƐ Ĭƞő ʨqƞŊƩƜŘ ŰǏƩƜ ƩǣŸŘǏ ǣǏĬőŽƞű ĬŊǣŽȂŽǣŽŘǗʩʋ þǌƩƞ ǗĬƓŘʆ ǣŸŘ 
ȂĬƓǫŘ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ǗǣƩŊƐ ŽǗ ŊŸĬǏűŘő ĬűĬŽƞǗǣ ʨqƞŊƩƜŘ ŰǏƩƜ ƩǣŸŘǏ ǣǏĬőŽƞű ĬŊǣŽȂŽǣŽŘǗʩ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ ǌǏƩŊŘŘőǗ ĬǏŘ ǏŘŊƩűƞŽǗŘő ĬǗ ʨqƞŊƩƜŘ ŰǏƩƜ 
ƩǣŸŘǏ ǣǏĬőŽƞű ĬŊǣŽȂŽǣŽŘǗʩʋ Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not 
ǏŘŊƩűƞŽǗŘő Žƞ ǣŸŘ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ǗǣĬǣŘƜŘƞǣǗ ǫƞǣŽƓ ǣŸŘȉ ĬǏŘ ǗƩƓőʋ  ÷ŸŽǗ ŽƞŊƩƜŘ ŽǗ ǏŘŊƩűƞŽǗŘő ȃŽǣŸŽƞ ʨqƞŊƩƜŘ ŰǏƩƜ ƩǣŸŘǏ ǣǏĬőŽƞű ĬŊǣŽȂŽǣŽŘǗʩʋ  
 
Where the donated good  is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which 
case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding 
amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with 
ǣŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣʨǗ ĬŊŊƩǫƞǣŽƞű ǌƩƓŽŊŽŘǗʋ 

 

Resources Expended  

 
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable 
that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably . 
Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including 
support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to  that activity. 
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and suppor t costs which are not attributable to a single activity are 
apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on th e basis 
of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portioƞ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ĬǗǗŘǣʩǗ ǫǗŘʋ 

 
¶ Costs of generating funds  

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all 
fundraising activities events and non -charitable trading.  

 
¶ Charitable activi ties  

÷ŸŘǗŘ ĬǏŘ ŊƩǗǣǗ ŽƞŊǫǏǏŘő Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣʩǗ ŘőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞĬƓ ƩǌŘǏĬǣŽƩƞǗʆ ŽƞŊƓǫőŽƞű ǗǫǌǌƩǏǣ ŊƩǗǣǗ Ĭƞő ŊƩǗǣǗ ǏŘƓĬǣŽƞű ǣƩ ǣŸŘ 
governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.  

 
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.  
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Note 1. Statement of accounting policies (Continued):  
 
Tangible Fixed Assets  
 
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any p rovision 
for impairment. Assets below this val ue where they form part of one larger project are also capitalised as part of that project.  
 
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the privat e 
sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related grants 
are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance She et. 
Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce 
ǣŸŘ Űǫƞő ƩȂŘǏ ǣŸŘ ǫǗŘŰǫƓ ŘŊƩƞƩƜŽŊ ƓŽŰŘ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ǏŘƓĬǣŘő ĬǗǗŘǣ Ʃƞ Ĭ ŉĬǗŽǗ ŊƩƞǗŽǗǣŘƞǣ ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ őŘǌǏŘŊŽĬǣŽƩƞ ǌƩƓŽŊy. 
 
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset 
on a straight- line basis over its expected useful lives, as follows:  
 

¶ Freehold buildings    50 Years straight line 
¶ Building Improvements    10 Years 
¶ Plant and Machinery    10 Years 
¶ Vehicles     10 years 
¶ Furniture    10 Years 
¶ ICT equipment     4 Years 

   
Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought  into 
use.  
 
A review f or impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any 
fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are 
recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.  
 
Leased Assets  
 
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.  
 
Stock  
 
Unsold catering material is valued at the low er of cost or net realisable value. 
 
Taxation  
 
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it 
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accor dingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt 
from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporatio n Tax 
Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied 
exclusively to charitable purposes.  
 
Liabilities  
 
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a 
transfer of economic benefit  will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities 
are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as 
advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. 
 
  



The King’s School Academy Trust 

33 

Note 1. Statement of accounting policies (Continued):  
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which it  is 
probable will resul t in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.  
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time v alue 
of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects the risks specific to the liability.  The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and simila r charges. 
 
Financial Instruments  
 
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of t he 
academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:  
 

Financial assets ʛ trade and other debtors are basic financial instr uments and are debt instruments measured at amortised 
cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.  

 
Cash at bank ʛ is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 

 
Financial liabilities ʛ trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised 
cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure 
definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and 
ǣŸŘǏŘ ŽǗ Ĭƞ ƩŉƓŽűĬǣŽƩƞ ǣƩ őŘƓŽȂŘǏ ǗŘǏȂŽŊŘǗ ǏĬǣŸŘǏ ǣŸĬƞ ŊĬǗŸ ƩǏ ĬƞƩǣŸŘǏ ŰŽƞĬƞŊŽĬƓ ŽƞǗǣǏǫƜŘƞǣʋ !ƜƩǫƞǣǗ őǫŘ ǣƩ ŊŸĬǏŽǣȉʩǗ ȃŸƩƓƓȉ 
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. 

 
Pensions Benefits  
 
âŘǣŽǏŘƜŘƞǣ ŉŘƞŘŰŽǣǗ ǣƩ ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘŘǗ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣ ĬǏŘ ǌǏƩȂŽőŘő ŉȉ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ êŊŸŘƜŘ ʘʨ÷ßêʩʙ Ĭƞő ǣŸŘ ¥ƩŊĬƓ 
eƩȂŘǏƞƜŘƞǣ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ êŊŸŘƜŘ ʘʨ¥eßêʩʙʋ ÷ŸŘǗŘ ĬǏŘ őŘŰŽƞŘő ŉŘƞŘŰŽǣ ǗŊŸŘƜŘǗʋ 
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme aƞő ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ ĬǏŘ ŊĬƓŊǫƓĬǣŘő ǗƩ ĬǗ ǣƩ ǗǌǏŘĬő ǣŸŘ ŊƩǗǣ ƩŰ ǌŘƞǗŽƩƞǗ ƩȂŘǏ ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘŘǗʩ ȃƩǏƐŽƞű 
lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pe nsionable 
payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective 
unit credit method. As stated in note 25, the TPS is a multi -employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use 
defined benefit accountin g. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the 
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.  
 
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate 
Trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis 
using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retur n on a high quality corporate 
bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are u pdated at 
each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme 
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.  They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net inte rest on 
the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activ ities and comprises the interest cost on 
the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the sche me 
assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligati ons.    
 
The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in 
other recognised gains and losses. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 
 
Fund Accounting  
 
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the 
Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. 
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Note 1. Statement of accounting policies (Continued):  
 
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the ass et 
acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.  
 
Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants with restrictions imposed by the 
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.  

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement  
 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  
 
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  The resulting accounting estimates and assumptio ns 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed bel ow. 
 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) fo r 
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying  
amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial va luation 
performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences 
between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount  of 
the pension liability.  
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Note 2. Donations and capital grants  
  

Unrestricted 
Funds  

Restricted  
Funds 

 2020  
Total   

2019  
Total   

£  £  £  £    
 

 
   

 

 Devolved Formula Capital allocations -   23,548   23,548   84,960  
 Other Capital Donations -   -   -   1,000 
 Local Developer Capital Donation -   -   -   263,768   

Other Donations 2,350   200   2,550   6,735    
2,350   23,748   26,098   356,463  

 
 

The income from donations and capital grants was £26,098 (2019: £356,463) of which £2,350 was unrestricted (2019: 
£4,735) , £200 restricted (2019: £2,000) and £23,548 restricted fixed assets (2019: £349,728).  

 

Note 3. Income from other trading activities  
 

   
 

Unrestricted   Restricted   2020   2019  
   

 
Funds  Funds  Total   Total 

    £  £  £  £ 
   

 
  

 
 

 
 

 

 Hire of Facilities   6,579   -   6,579   12,083  
 Other Services  

 
67,108   -   67,108   79,536  

   
 

73,687   -   73,687   91,619  

 
The activities for generating funds was £73,687 (2019: £91,619) of which £73,687 was unrestricted (2019: £91,619), £nil 
restricted (2019: £nil) and £nil  restricted fixed assets (2019: £nil).  

 

Note 4. Investment income  
 

  Unrestricted   Restricted   2020   2019  

  Funds  Funds  Total   Total   
£  £  £  £   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Short term deposits -  Interest 7,137   -   7,137   7,706    

7,137   -   7,137   7,706  
 

The investment income was £7,137 (2019: £7,706) of which £7,137 was unrestricted (2019: £7,706), £nil restricted (2019: 
nil) and £nil restricted fixed assets (2019: £nil).  
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Note 5. Funding for Academy's educational operations  

  
Unrestricted   Restricted   2020   2019  

  
Funds  Funds  Total   Total 

  
£  £  £  £ 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

      
 

 DfE / EFA revenue grants        
 

 General Annual Grant (GAG)  -   5,144,108   5,144,108   5,071,268  
 16-19 Bursary Fund -  16,240   16,240   12,767  
 Pupil Premium -  119,374   119,374   113,224  
 Other DfE / EFA grants -   295,985   295,985   50,244  
 

 
  5,575,707   5,575,707   5,247,503  

 
 

      
 

 Other Government grants        
 

 SEN from Local Authority  -   138,899   138,899   135,967  
 JCTSA -  -   -   4,050  
 LA Formula Correction for SEN -  111,631   111,631   37,163  
 School Games Organiser -   24,820   24,820   25,059  
         

 Other income from Educational 
Operations  

     
 

 

 Catering Income 225,280   80  225,360   310,655  
 Educational Activities Income 38,303   -   38,303   49,553  
 Trips and Visits -   144,381   144,381   225,362  
 

 
263,583   419,811   683,394   787,809  

  
      

 

  263,583   5,995,518   6,259,101   6,035,312  
 
 

The funding of the academies educational operations was £6,259,101 (2019: £6,035,312) of which £263,583 was unrestricted 
(2019: £358,128) , £5,995,518 restricted (2019: £5,677,184) and £nil restricted fixed assets (2019: £nil).  
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Note 6. Resources Expended  

    Non Pay Expenditure   Total   Total 

  Staff   Premises  Other Costs   2020   2019  

  £  £  £  £  £ 

           
 Costs of activities for  generating funds  -   -   -   -   -  

          
 

 Academy's educational operations         
 

   Direct costs 4,446,178   488,438   334,698   5,269,314   5,083,941  

   Allocated support costs  765,418   248,921   501,502   1,515,841   1,660,884  

   Development costs -  -   -   -   -  

          
 

  5,211,596   737,359   836,199   6,785,155   6,744,825  

          
 

           
 Net Incoming/(outgoing) resources for           
 the year include:        2020   2019  

        £  £ 

 Operating leases       6,990   7,789  

 Fees payable to auditor  -  audit      5,000   5,000  

  -  other     1,300   800  

           
 

The resources expended was £6,785,155 (2019: £6,744,825) of which £303,736 was unrestricted (2019: £376,982), £5,969,939 
restricted (2019: £5,891,266) and £511,480 restricted fixed a ssets (2019: £476,577).  
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Note 7. Charitable Activities -  Academy's educational operations  
 

  
Unrestricted   Restricted   Total   Total   
Funds  Funds  2020   2019    

£  £  £  £   
  

 
 

 
   

Direct costs    
 

 
 

   
Teaching and educational support staff cos ts 47,428   4,398,749   4,446178   4,179,684   
Depreciation -  488,438   488,438   456,256  

 Technology Costs -  30,508   30,508   28,448   
Educational supplies 2,235   176,782   179,017   204,582   
Examination fees -  85,128   85,128   113,563   
Staff development  -   13,473   13,473   15,005   
Educational consultancy -  19,068   19,068   33,271   
Other direct costs 1,350   6,155   7,505   53,133    

51,014   5,218,300   5,269,314   5,083,941    
         
        

Allocated support costs          
Support staff costs  121,316   644,102  765,418   802,758   
Depreciation -  23,042   23,042   20,321  

 Technology costs -  68,023   68,023   55,928   
Recruitment and support  -   7,892   7,892   12,144   
Premises Costs -  248,921   248,921   266,577   
Other Support Costs -  36,099   36,099   14,517   
Pension Finance Charge  -   58,000   58,000   58,000  

 Catering 131,406   18,230   149,636   201,742  
 Trips and Visits -   150,977   150,977   221,576  
 Governance Costs -  7,833   7,833   7,321    

252,722   1,263,119   1,515,841   1,660,884    
        

Development costs        
 

  
         

303,736   6,481,419   6,785,155   6,744,825    
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
÷ŸŘ ǏŘǗƩǫǏŊŘǗ ŘȈǌŘƞőŘő ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ŘőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞĬƓ ƩǌŘǏĬǣŽƩƞǗ ȃĬǗ ˄ɅʆɆɇɄʆɀɄɄ ʘɁȿɀɈʅ ˄ɅʆɆɃɃʆɇɁɄʙ ƩŰ ȃŸŽŊŸ ˄ɂȿɂʆɆɂɅ 
was unrestricted (2019: £376,982), £5,939,939 restricted (2019: £5, 891,266) and £511,480 restricted fixed assets (2019: 
£476,577).  
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Note 8. Staff Costs  
 

Staff costs during the period were:    
          Total   Total       2020   2019        £  £     

  
 

 
 

 
Wages and salaries 

  
  3,863,166   3,776,670   

Social security costs 
  

  353,530   337,863   
Other pension costs 

  
  971,336   822,485  

 Apprenticeship Levy      4,400   4,030      
  5,192,432   4,941,048   

Supply teacher costs 
  

  19,164   41,394   
Staff Restructuring Costs  

  
  -   -   

  
 

  5,211,596   4,982,442  
 Staff restructuring costs comprise:         
          

Redundancy Payments 
  

  -   -   
Severance Payments 

  
  -   -  

 Other restructuring costs      -   -      
  -   -      
         
      

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the Academy during the year was as 
follows:  
   

2020  
 

2020   2019   2019    
FTE 

 
Headcount   FTE  Headcount  

Charitable Activities   
   

 
 

 
 

 
Teachers 57 

 
69  57 

 
69  

Administration and support  49 
 

74  48 
 

73  
Management 7 

 
7  7 

 
7   

113  
 

150   112  
 

149      
  

 
 

 
 

 
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:         

        
2020   2019        

No.  No.        
 

 

 £60,000 - £70,000      5  5 
 £90,000 - £100,000      1  1        

   
Five of the ĬŉƩȂŘ ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘŘǗ ǌĬǏǣŽŊŽǌĬǣŘő Žƞ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ êŊŸŘƜŘʋ  DǫǏŽƞű ǣŸŘ ȉŘĬǏ ŘƞőŘő ɂɀ !ǫűǫǗǣ ɁȿɁȿʆ 
pension contributions for these employees amounted to £81,856 (2019: £55,074).  
One of the above employees participated in the Local Government Pension Scheme.  During the year ended 31 August 
2020, pension contributions for this employee amounted to £10,186 (2019: £9,356)  
 
The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the staff trustees and the senior leadership team as listed 
on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management 
personnel for the services they provide to the academy trust was £770,669 (2019: £712,350)  
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Note 9. Related Party Transactions -  ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ âŘƜǫƞŘǏĬǣŽƩƞ and Expenses 

The Headteacher and staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of 
Headteacher and staff and not in respect of their services as Trustees. Other Trustees did not receive any payments, other than 
expenses, from the Academy in respect of their role as Trustees.  The remuneration for those staff Trustees that have voting 
rights and are Trustees are shown below.    

êŘǌǣ ʩɀɈ ǣƩ !ǫű ʩɁȿ êŘǌǣ ʩɀɇ ǣƩ !ǫű ʩɀɈ   
£ £   

 
 

 Mr R Gammon (Headteacher)    
  Remuneration £95,000 -  £100,000  £90,000 - £95,000  
  LƜǌƓƩȉŘǏʩǗ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ £20,000 -  £25,000  £15,000 - £20,000  
     

Dr C Hawkins (Staff Trustee)  
 

  Remuneration £40,000 -  £45,000  £40,000 - £45,000  
  LƜǌƓƩȉŘǏʩǗ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ £5,000 -  £10,000  £5,000 - £10,000  
    
 Mr D Nicholson (Staff Trustee)   
  Remuneration £20,000 -  £25,000  £20,000 - £25,000  
  LƜǌƓƩȉŘǏʩǗ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ £0 -  £5,000  £0 - £5,000  
    
 Mrs R Jacobs (Staff Trustee)   
  Remuneration £45,000 -  £50,000  £45,000 - £50,000  
  LƜǌƓƩȉŘǏʩǗ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ £10,000 -  £15,000  £5,000 - £10,000  
    

 

 

During the year ended 31 August 2020, travel and subsistence expenses were incurred totalling £41 (2019 - £0) were 
reimbursed to 1 trustees (2019 ʛ 0 trustees).  
 
Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 27.  

 
 
Note 10: Trustees' and Officers' Insurance  
 
÷ŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉ ǣǏǫǗǣ ŸĬǗ ƩǌǣŘő ŽƞǣƩ ǣŸŘ DŘǌĬǏǣƜŘƞǣ ŰƩǏ LőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞʩǗ ǏŽǗƐ ǌǏƩǣŘŊǣŽƩƞ ĬǏǏĬƞűŘƜŘƞǣ ʘâß!ʙʆ Ĭƞ ĬƓǣŘǏƞĬǣŽȂŘ ǣƩ ŽƞǗurance 
where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from claims arising from neglig ent 
acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible  to quantify 
the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.  
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Note 11: Tangible Fixed Assets  
 

 
Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 

Plant & 
Machinery 

Computer 
Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Building 
Improve 

Assets 
Under 

Construction 

Total  
£ 

      
 

  

Cost 
     

 
  

At 1 Sept 2019  16,280,520  142,467  207,023  296,970  41,040  1,540,778  64,837  18,573,635  
Additions  - 30,876  60,965  78,419  - 3,082  519,106  692,448  
Transfers - -  4,540  - -  573,737  (578,277)  -  
Disposals -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
At 31 Aug 2020  16,280,520  173,343  272,528  375,389  41,040  2,117,596  5,666  19,266,083        

 
  

Depreciation  
     

 
  

At 1 Sept 2019  2,050,387  63,875  124,766  196,491  30,952  495,373  - 2,961,844  
Charged in year 268,513  13,734  23,042  46,773 4,104  155,314  - 511,480  
Disposals -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
At 31 Aug 2020  2,318,900  77,609  147,808  243,264  35,056  650,687  -  3,473,324        

 
  

Net book values  
     

 
  

At 31 Aug 2020  13,961,620  95,734  124,720  132,125  5,984  1,466,909  5,666  15,792,758        
 

  

At 1st Sept 2019  14,230,133  78,592  82,257  100,479  10,088  1,045,405  64,837  15,611,791  
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Note 12: Stock    

2020   2019    
£  £   

  
 

 
Catering -   1,200    

-   1,200  

 
Note 13: Debtors    

2020   2019    
£  £   

  
 

 
Trade debtors (259)   401   
Prepayments  158,722   101,581  

 Accrued Income 18,188   17,760   
Other debtors  2,569   1,636   
VAT recoverable 35,921   42,604    

215,141   163,981  
 

Note 14: Creditors    
2020   2019   

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year  £  £   
  

 
 

Trade creditors 102,990   115,750  
 Other Creditors 11,790   10,530   

Accruals and deferred income 161,641   235,397    
276,421   361,687  

     
 Deferred income     

  £   
 Deferred Income at 1 September 2019  142,240    

 Resources deferred in the year 126,8 69   

 Amounts released from previous years (142,240)    

 Deferred Income at 31 August 2020  126,869    

     

 

 
Deferred Income at 31st August 2020 comprises the following:  

  

 
  £   
 EFA 2020/21 Devolved Capital  13,641    
 EFA Rates 17,034    
 Sports Games Organiser 13,883    
 Teacher training 3,150    
 Facility Hire 799    

 Trips and Visits 64,161    
 Ottery Local Learning Community  14,200    

  126,869    
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Note 15: Funds    

Balance at Incoming  Resources  Gains, losses Balance at   
 1 Septembe r Resources Expended  and transfers  31 August    

2019  
   

2020    
£ £ £ £ £  

Restricted general funds  
     

 
General Annual Grant (GAG) 14,519  5,440,093  (5,177,627)  (276,984)  -   
Pupil Premium - 119,374  (119,374)  -  -   
16-19 Bursary 9,871  16,240  (15,418)  -  10,694   
Local Authority SEN - 250,530  (250,530)  -  -    

24,390  5,826,237  (5,562,949)  (276,984)  10,694     
     

Restricted general other funds  
 

    
 JCTSA 5,283  - (2,635) -  2,648   

School Sports & Games Partnership 5,015  24,820  (42,049)  17,129  4,915  
 Endeavour Fund 2,255  200  (865) -  1,590  
 DETA 4,920  80 (1,463) -  3,537   

Trips and Visits 13,072  144,381  (150,977)  -  6,476  
  30,545  169,481  (197,989)  17,129  19,166   

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (3,057,000)  -  (209,000)  (308,000)  (3,574,000)    
(3,026,455)  169,481  (406,989)  (290,871)  (3,554,834)     

     
Restricted fixed asset funds  

 
     

On Conversion 11,653,908  - (213,050)  -  11,440,858   
DfE/ESFA Devolved Capital Grant 184,907  23,548  (31,779)  -  176,675   
ACMF / CIF Capital Grant 2,131,550  - (102,281)  -  2,029,270   
Capital expenditure from GAG / Unr  885,069  - (125,627)  668,902  1,428,344   
Capital expenditure from Donations  756,354  - (38,744)  -  717,610    

15,611,788  23,548  (511,481)  668,902  15,792,757     
     

Total restricted funds  12,609,723  6,019,266  (6,481,419)  101,047  12,248,617     
     

Unrestricted funds  
 

     
Unrestricted funds  772,575  346,758  (303,736)  (409,047)  406,550   

Total unrestricted funds  772,575  346,758  (303,736)  (409,047)  406,550     
     

Total funds  13,382,298  6,366,024  (6,785,155)  (308,000)  12,655,167  

 
 
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:  
 
General Annual Grant  
This includes all monies received from the ESFA to carry out the objectives of the Academy. It includes the School Budget Share, 
ESG (EőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞĬƓ êŘǏȂŽŊŘǗ eǏĬƞǣʙ Ĭƞő ǏĬǣŘǗ űǏĬƞǣ ĬǗ ȃŘƓƓ ĬǗ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏʩǗ ßĬȉ eǏĬƞǣʋ 
 
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG th at 
it could carry forward on the 31 August 2020.   
 

Pupil Premium  
The school receives a grant from the ESFA based on Free School Meals + 6 (anyone taking or having taken FSM in the last 6 years), 
students whose parents are in the services, those who are Looked After or adopted from care. This is a proxy me asure designed 
to address performance of students who are deemed to be suffering or at risk of deprivation. The school must use the funds to  
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address progress of any students who we deem to be at risk of deprivation inhibiting their learning and progress. D etails are 
ŊƩƞǣĬŽƞŘő Žƞ ǣŸŘ ÷ǏǫǗǣŘŘǗʩ ǏŘǌƩǏǣʋ ÷ŸŘ Űǫƞő ŽƞŊƓǫőŘǗ ƜƩƞŘȉ ǏŘŊŘŽȂŘő ŰǏƩƜ ǣŸŘ Ld! ŰƩǏ ĜŘĬǏ Ɇ =ĬǣŊŸ þǌ Ĭƞő ŰǫƞőǗ ǣǏĬƞǗŰŘǏǏŘő ŰǏom 
local authorities for Pupil Premium students who may move into the school mid -way through the year.  
 
16-19 Bursary  
A grant provided to the academy from the ESFA to provide bursary support directly to students in the 6 th Form that are in need of 
financial support to complete their studies.  
 
Local Authority SEN  
Funding received from the local authority to support student s with individual statutory EHCPs (Educational and Health Care Plans).   
 
JCTSA 
The fund associated with our work as part of the Jurassic Coast Teaching Alliance. This supports the development of best prac tice 
across the alliance and has included a specific focus on the SEND area.  
 
School Sports and Games partnership  
The fund includes monies received from a number of sources in support of our work as a sports games coordinator, community 
sports, and other monies specifically targeted at sports participatio n.  
 
Endeavour Fund  
The school is privileged to have received donations from a local organisation that allows staff to nominate specific students  for 
ĬőőŽǣŽƩƞĬƓ ǗǫǌǌƩǏǣ ŰǏƩƜ Ĭƞ ʦLƞőŘĬȂƩǫǏ dǫƞőʧʋ !ƞȉ ƜŘƜŉŘǏ ƩŰ ǗǣĬŰŰ ŊĬƞ ƞƩƜŽƞĬǣŘ Ĭ ǗǣǫőŘƞǣʆ ŉǫǣ ǣŸŘ ǗǣǫőŘƞǣ Ɯust be in receipt of 
Free School Meals or the school be made aware of a particular hardship case. Examples of the types of materials/activities that 
could be supported by the fund include: supporting the costs of a musical instrument, paying for participat ion in a sporting activity 
within or beyond school, materials for an art project, a subscription to a journal, etc.  
 
DETA 
ĖŘ ƜĬƞĬűŘ ǣŸŘ ŰǫƞőǗ ĬǗǗƩŊŽĬǣŘő ȃŽǣŸ ǣŸŘ DŘȂƩƞ LőǫŊĬǣŽƩƞ ÷ŘŊŸƞŽŊŽĬƞǗʩ !ǗǗƩŊŽĬǣŽƩƞʋ ÷ŸŽǗ ŽǗ Ĭ ŊƩƓƓĬŉƩǏĬǣŽƩƞ Ĭƞő ǌĬǏǣƞŘǏǗŸŽǌ 
between local schools to provide affordable & local training for School Science Technicians in Devon and surrounding areas. 
 
Trips and Visits  
This represents funds provided by parents and carers to support the expenditure associated with curricular and extra -curricular 
trips and visits .  
 
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme  
This represents the negative reserve in respect of the LGPS scheme transferred over and subsequent movements ʛ see Note 26. 
 
Restricted Fixed Asset Funds  
The fund includes the value of the Fixed Assets of the Academy on conversion, monies received from The EFA specifically for the 
Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets and monies transferred from GAG for the purchase of Fixed Assets. Donations to the school  
for the purchase of specific fixed assets are also included.  
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Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:  
 

  
Balance at Incoming  Resources  Gains, losses Balance at   

 1 September  Resources Expended  and transfers  31 August    
2018  

   
2019    

£ £ £ £ £  
Restric ted general funds  

     
 

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 5,121,512  (5,043,856)  (63,138)  14,519   
Pupil Premium 64 113,224  (113,288)  -  -   
16-19 Bursary 8,986  12,767  (11,881)  -  9,872   
Local Authority SEN - 173,130  (173,130)  -  -    

9,050  5,420,633  (5,342,155)  (63,138)  24,390     
     

Restricted general other funds  
 

    
 JCTSA 3,887  4,050  (2,654) -  5,283   

School Sports & Games Partnership 442  25,059  (40,013)  19,527  5,015  
 Endeavour Fund 1,273  2,000  (1,018) -  2,255  
 DETA 4,690  2,080  (1,850) -  4,920   

Trips and Visits 9,286  225,362  (221,576)  -  13,072  
  19,578  258,551  (267,111)  19,527  30,545   

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (2,305,000)   (282,000)  (470,000)  (3,057,000)    
(2,285,422)  258,551  (549,111)  (450,473)  (3,026,455)     

     
Restricted fixed asset funds  

 
     

On Conversion 11,867,050  - (213,142)  -  11,653,908   
DfE/ESFA Devolved Capital Grant 127,978  84,960  (28,032)  -  184,907   
ACMF / CIF Capital Grant 2,233,532  - (101,981)  -  2,131,551   
Capital expenditure from GAG / Unr  954,505  - (113,047)  43,611  885,0 69  
Capital expenditure from Donations  511,961  264,768  (20,376)  -  756,354    

15,695,026  349,729  (476,577)  43,611  15,611,788     
     

Total restricted funds  13,418,654  6,028,912  (6,367,843)  (470,000)  12,609,723     
     

Unrestricted funds  
 

     
Unrestricted funds 687,370  462,187  (376,982)  -  772,575   

Total unrestricted funds  687,370  462,187  (376,982)  -  772,575     
     

Total funds  14,106,024  6,491,099  (6,744,825)  (470,000)  13,382,298  
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Note 16: Analysis of Net Assets between Funds  
  

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are 
represented by: 

    

  
Unrestricted  Restricted  Restricted  Total  

  
General fund  General fund  Fixed asset fund  2020    

£ £ £ £       
 

Tangible fixed assets - -  15,792,758  15,792,758   
Current assets 476,390  236,440  - 712,830   
Current liabilities (69,840)  (206,580)  (1) (276,421)  

 Non-Current Liabilities - -  -  -   
Pension scheme liability -  (3,574,000)  -  (3,574,000)   

           Total net assets 2020  406,550  (3,544,140)  15,792,757  12,665,167  
        

 
Note 17: Capital Commitments  
   

2020   2019    
£  £   

  
 

 
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements  -   -    

   
 
 
Note 18: Finance Commitments     

 
Operating leases  

  
    
 

At 31 August 2020 the ǣƩǣĬƓ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ !ŊĬőŘƜȉ ÷ǏǫǗǣʩǗ ŰǫǣǫǏŘ ƜŽƞŽƜǫƜ ƓŘĬǗŘ ǌĬȉƜŘƞǣǗ ǫƞőŘǏ 
non-cancellable operating leases was: 

 
  

2020  
 

2019   
£ 

 
£ 

Land and buildings 
   

Expiring within one year  -  
 

-  
Expiring within two and five years inclusive  - 

 
-  

Expiring in over five years - 
 

 -        
-      

Other 
   

Expiring within one year  10,634  
 

3,615  
Expiring within two and five years inclusive  12,438  

 
2,689  

Expiring in over five years -  
 

-   
23,072  

 
6,304  
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Note 19: Reconciliation of consolidated operating surplus to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating 
activities  
   

2020  
 

2019   
£ 

 
£ 

 
  

Net Income for the period (419,131)  
 

(253,726)  
Depreciation (note 11)   511,480  

 
476,578  

Net Assets Transferred on Conversion   -  
 

-  
Loss on Disposal of Tangible Fixed Assets  -   -  
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income   (23,548)  

 
(349,729)  

Interest receivable (note 4)  (7,137)  
 

(7,706) 
FRS 17 pension cost less contributions payable (note 25) 151,000  

 
224,000  

FRS 17 pension finance income (note 25)  58,000  
 

58,000  
Decrease / (Increase) in stock  1,200  

 
(700) 

Decrease / (Increase) in debtors  (51,159)  
 

45,505  
(Decrease) / Increase in creditors  (85,256)  

 
(217,877)    

 
  

Net cash inflow/(outflow)from operating activities  
 

135,449  
 

(25,654)  
 
 
 
 

Note 20: Returns on investments and servicing of finance    
2020  

 
2019   

£ 
 

£ 
 

  

Interest received 
 

7,137  
 

7,706  
Net cash inflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance  7,137  

 
7,706  

 
 
 

Note 21: Capital expenditure and financial investment    
2020   2019   

£  £  
 

 

Capital expenditure and financial investment  
  

 
 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 
 

(692,484)   (393.029)  
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA 

 
23,584   84,960  

Capital funding received from sponsors and others  
 

-   264,768  
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets 

 
-   -  

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from capital expenditure and financ ial investment  (668,900)   (43,300)  
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Note 22: Analysis of changes in net funds  
 

Analysis of changes in net funds  At 1 September  
   

At 31 August   
2019  

 
Cash flows 

 
2020   

£ 
 

£ 
 

£ 
Cash in hand and at bank 1,024,003  

 
(526,314)  

 
497,689   

1,024,003  
 

(526,314)  
 

497,689  

 
 
 

Note 23: Contingent Liabilities  
 
The Trustees are not aware of any contingent liabilities.  
 
 
 
±ƩǣŘ ɁɃʅ ¯ŘƜŉŘǏǗʩ ¥ŽĬŉŽƓŽǣȉ 
 
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it be ing wound up 
while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding 
£10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.  
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Note 25: Pension and Similar Ob ligations  
 
÷ŸŘ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘŘǗ ŉŘƓƩƞű ǣƩ ǣȃƩ ǌǏŽƞŊŽǌĬƓ ǌŘƞǗŽƩƞ ǗŊŸŘƜŘǗʅ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ êŊŸŘƜŘ LƞűƓĬƞő Ĭƞő ĖĬƓŘǗ ʘ÷ßêʙ ŰƩǏ 
academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by Devon  
County Council. Both are defined-benefit schemes. The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent 
qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 M arch 
2019.  

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.        

÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ êŊŸŘƜŘ 
 
Introduction  

     

      
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defŽƞŘő ŉŘƞŘŰŽǣ ǗŊŸŘƜŘʆ űƩȂŘǏƞŘő ŉȉ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ 
Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt -out of the TPS 
following enrolment.  
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these 
contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parli ament. 
     
ĕĬƓǫĬǣŽƩƞ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞ êŊŸŘƜŘ      
 
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with t he 
Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of 
the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about th e 
value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out a s at 31 
March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.  
 
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: 
 
¶ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% em ployer administration charge)  
¶ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effecti ve 

date of £218,000 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the no tional investments held 
at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million  

¶ the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above 
the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real 
earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.  
 

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.  
 
The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. The latest valuation 
of the Teachers' Pension Scheme has now taken place, in line with directions issued by HM Treasury and using membership data 
as at 31 March 2016. As a result of this valuation TPS employers will pay an increased contribution rate of 23.68% from 1 
September 2019 (this includes the administration levy of 0.08%).  
 
The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £570,000 (2019: £429,000)  
 
! ŊƩǌȉ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ ȂĬƓǫĬǣŽƩƞ ǏŘǌƩǏǣ Ĭƞő ǗǫǌǌƩǏǣŽƞű őƩŊǫƜŘƞǣĬǣŽƩƞ ŽǗ Ʃƞ ǣŸŘ ÷ŘĬŊŸŘǏǗʩ ßŘƞǗŽƩƞǗ ȃŘŉǗŽǣŘʋ 
 
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi -employer pension scheme. The academy trust has accounted 
for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the info rmation 
available on the scheme. 
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Note 25: Pension and Similar Obligations (Continued)  
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
    
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate Trustee-administered funds. The total contribution 
ƜĬőŘ ŰƩǏ ǣŸŘ ȉŘĬǏ ŘƞőŘő ɂɀ !ǫűǫǗǣ ɁȿɁȿ ȃĬǗ ˄ɂȿɂʆȿȿȿ ʘɁȿɀɈʅ ˄ɁɁɀʆȿȿȿʙ ƩŰ ȃŸŽŊŸ ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘǏʩǗ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ ǣƩtalled £250,000 
ʘɁȿɀɈʅ ˄ɀɆȿʆȿȿȿʙ Ĭƞő ŘƜǌƓƩȉŘŘǗʩ ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞǗ ǣƩǣĬƓƓŘő ˄Ʉɂʆȿȿȿ ʘɁȿɀɈʅ ˄Ʉȿʆȿȿȿʙʋ ÷ŸŘ ĬűǏŘŘő ŊƩƞǣǏŽŉǫǣŽƩƞ ǏĬǣŘǗ ŰƩǏ ŰǫǣǫǏŘ ȉŘĬǏs 
are 17.6% for employers and a range of 5.5% to 8.5% depending on the salary received by the employee. Parliament has agreed, 
at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Loc al 
Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on  18 July 
2013.     

 
Principal Actuarial Assumptions  

 
At 31 August  At 31 August    

2020  2019      

Rate of increase in salaries 
 

3.25%  3.7% 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation  

 
2.25%  2.2% 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities  
 

1.6% 1.9% 
Inflation assumption (CPI)  

 
2.25%  2.2% 

Inflation assumption (RPI)  
 

3.05%  3.2% 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums  

 
50%  50% 

 
It is also assumed that active Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension 
weighted average tranche retirement age and that the proportion of active members that had taken up the 50:50 option under 
the new LGPS to pay 50% of contributions for 50% of benefits will remain the same.  

The following table sets out the impact  of a small change in the discount rates on the defined benefit obligation and projected 
service cost along with a +/- 1 year age rating adjustment to the mortality assumption.  

 £000's  £000's  £000's  
Adjustment to Discount Rate  +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
     Present Value of Total Obligation  6,068  6,231  6,398  
     Projected Service Cost 471  485  500  

    
Adjustment to Long Term Salary Increase  +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
     Present Value of Total Obligation  6,255  6,231  6,207  
     Projected Service Cost 485  485  485  
    
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation  +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
     Present Value of Total Obligation  6,373  6,231  6,093  
     Projected Service Cost 499  485  471  
    
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption  +1 Year None -1 Year 
     Present Value of Total Obligation  6,457  6,231  6,013  
     Projected Service Cost 502  485  469  
        
÷ŸŘ ƜƩǏǣĬƓŽǣȉ ŽƜǌǏƩȂŘƜŘƞǣ ǌǏƩƍŘŊǣŽƩƞ ŸĬǗ ŉŘŘƞ ǫǌőĬǣŘő ǣƩ ǫǗŘ ǣŸŘ ƓĬǣŘǗǣ ȂŘǏǗŽƩƞ ƩŰ ǣŸŘ =ƩƞǣŽƞǫƩǫǗ ¯ƩǏǣĬƓŽǣȉ qƞȂŘǗǣŽűĬǣŽƩƞʩǗ 
model, CMI_2018, which was re leased in March 2019. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 
   

At 31 August  At 31 August    
2020  2019  

Retiring today  
   

Males 
 

22.9 22.5 
Females 

 
24.1 24.4   

 
 

Retiring in 20 years 
 

 
 

Males 
 

24.3 24.2 
Females 

 
25.5 26.2 
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Note 2 5: Pension and Similar Obligations (Continued)  
 
The academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme and the expected rates of return were:  

        
 Fair value at 31 

August 2020   
Fair value at 31 

August 2019  

 

 
 £000's   ˄ȿȿȿʩǗ 

 
   

 
  

Equities - UK  336   377   
Equities - Overseas  1,250   1,026   
Gilts  95  84  
Other Bonds  125   44  
Property  211   205   
Infrastructure   107   89  
Cash  30  31  
Alternative Assets   169   123   
Target Return Portfolio   334   328   
Private equity  

 
-  

 
43 

 

Total ma rket value of assets  2,657   2,350    
     

      
Present value of scheme liabilities       
  -   Funded  (6,231)  (5,407)  
      
Deficit in the scheme  (3,574)   (3,057)  
       

       
The total return on the fund assets for the year 31 August 2020 is £11,000 (2019: £98,000)  
 
 
 
 
       
Total expenditure recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities  
 

 

    2020   2019  

    £000   £000  

   
  

  
Service Cost   401   393  
Net Interest cost   56  58 
Administration Expenses   2  1 
Total loss  

 
  459   452   
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Note 25: Pension and Similar Obligations (Continued)  
    
The actual gains and losses for the current year are recognised in the statement of financial activities. Allowances have 
been made for the estimated impact of the recent Mc Cloud judgement as a past service cost. This allowance was described 
in the previous accounting report and incorporated into the accounting results as at 31 August 2019. These results, 
including the allowance, have been rolled forward and re -measured to obtain the accounting results as at 31 August 2020.  

 

   
  

 

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:  
  

 
 

 
  2020   2019   
 

 
˄ʩȿȿȿ  ˄ʩȿȿȿ  

     
      
At 1 September    5,407   4,399  
Current service cost   401   329  
Interest cost   103   116  
Employee contributions   53  50 
Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation   13  -  
Benefits paid   (25)   (61) 
Past Service costs, including curtailments   -   64 
Change in demographic assumptions   (172)   (280) 
Change in Financial Assumptions   451   790  

      
At 31 August   

 
6,231   5,407  

      
    

¯ƩȂŘƜŘƞǣǗ Žƞ ǣŸŘ ŰĬŽǏ ȂĬƓǫŘ ƩŰ ĬŊĬőŘƜȉʩǗ ǗŸĬǏŘ ƩŰ ǗŊŸŘƜŘ ĬǗǗŘǣǗʅ      
  2020   2019   
 

 
˄ʩȿȿȿ  ˄ʩȿȿȿ 

       
     

At 1 September    2,350   2,094  
Expected return on assets   -   -  
Actuarial gains / (losses)   20  -  
Employer contributions    250   170  
Employee contributions   53  50 
Benefits paid   (25)   (61) 
Interest on Assets   47  58 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net 
defined pension liability) 

 
 

(36)   40 

Administration Expenses   (2)  (1) 

      
At 31 August   

 
2,657   2,350  
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Note 26: Related Party Transactions 
 

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public and private 
sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions 
involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all 
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial 
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related 
party transactions took place in the financial period: 
 

¶ The Headteacher’s spouse was recruited into a Learning Coach role during the course of this year. The appointment 
was advertised on the open market and Mr Gammon played no role in the appointment process or selection. 

 
 



 

 

 
 


